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Welcome to our Statement of Accounts 

 

Introduction 
 

2022/23 was yet another challenging year for the Council. Whilst still recovering from the impacts of the pandemic, our communities, 
businesses, and the Council have faced new challenges, most acutely the impact of the cost-of-living crisis. 2022/23 was also the year 
where we saw the devastating humanitarian impact of the war in Ukraine and the resulting support required for those guests arriving in very 
difficult circumstances. 
 
Working with our partners, we have been committed to do all we can to support our residents with the cost-of-living crisis. We have paid out 
over £6m of energy payments to relieve financial pressures, together with allocating over £260k of household support payments to those 
more vulnerable members of our communities. We have also provided support and advice to Ukrainians fleeing the war with over 350 
Ukrainian guests being housed by 137 hosts within the district. With our Ukraine liaison officers we will continue to provide assistance to 
guests to make them feel welcome and supported during their time within the district. This will include securing housing for longer term 
needs. 
 
Despite the challenges we face, the Council has continued to be ambitious for our residents and strived to deliver the very best for our 
district. With the focus on our key priorities of: 
 

• Supporting people 
• Strong economy and places 
• Sustainable environment 

 
We have delivered our promises to ensure our district continues to grow and flourish. A number of key highlights are detailed later in this 
report.   
 
Whilst the cost-of-living crisis and the war in Ukraine resulted in significant unexpected financial pressures for the Council, strong financial 
management and efficiencies in the use of our resources have resulted in savings for the Council, and we have been able to set aside 
funding to further support our community and economy in the future. We are pleased to report that both our reserves and balances 
available remain healthy. Our element of an average Band D Council Tax bill in 2022/23 was just £120.08 and will continue to be in 
2023/24. This has not changed since 2017/18 and we are proud to say is one of the lowest in England. 
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Supporting our communities and businesses to grow is of vital importance to us and we are developing an economic strategy to shape our 
future over this challenging time.  Our ambitions to provide excellent services and facilities to our residents continue with plans to develop 
the leisure centre in Droitwich gaining pace, together with investing in our town centres in line with our prospectuses and enhancing our 
built design with new guidance to ensure our new homes are in keeping with our beautiful district. 
 

The pages which follow explain the services we provide and how your Council Tax was spent during the year. Our statutory accounts have 
been prepared in line with International Financial Reporting Standards, but our easy-to-read Narrative Report explains the key issues in a 
way which we hope everyone will understand. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

COUNCILLOR AARON POWELL    JAYNE PICKERING   
Executive Board Member – Resources & Investment Deputy Chief Executive 

Wychavon District Council, Civic Centre, Queen Elizabeth Drive, Pershore WR10 1PT 
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Narrative Report 
 

ABOUT THE DISTRICT Wychavon lies in the south and eastern part of Worcestershire in the West Midlands region and is the largest of 

the six Worcestershire districts.  
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Narrative Report (continued) 
ABOUT THE COUNCIL 

Worcestershire has a two-tier system of local government, comprising Worcestershire County Council and six district councils. The County 

Council administers services such as education, waste disposal and social services across the whole of Worcestershire, whereas locally, 

Wychavon District Council operates a range of services including building regulation, homelessness, street cleaning, refuse collection, 

licensing, sport facilities, electoral administration, environmental health, community safety and the administration of council tax and 

business rates. 

Policies at Wychavon District Council are directed by the political leadership (Leader and Executive Board) and implemented by the Senior 

Management Team. 

The Council in 2022/23 was made up of 45* councillors as follows: 

• Conservative Party – 35 councillors 

• Liberal Democrat Party – 6 councillors 

• Green Party – 3 councillors 

• Independent – 1 councillor 

 
 

 
*this figure has reduced to 43 in 2023/24 following a boundary review. 
 
Councillors are supported by the Senior Management Team (SMT) headed by the Council’s Chief Executive, Vic Allison. Wychavon 

District Council shares a senior management team with Malvern Hills District Council and the management team is made up of seven 

officers including the Chief Executive. SMT are responsible for the overall management of the Council, for setting and monitoring overall 

direction and ensuring high performance in the delivery of council services. The Deputy Chief Executive (also the S151 Officer) does not 

work in a shared service arrangement. 

WYCHAVON STRATEGY 2020-2024 

Wychavon is an entrepreneurial council that has gained recognition for major projects like building Pershore hospital, two Waitrose stores, 

regenerating and reopening the Droitwich Canals and supporting events like the British Asparagus Festival and Pershore Plum Festival. In 

February 2020 we agreed a bold new four-year plan that will protect and enhance our environment, continue to grow our economy and 

see us invest in the things that matter most to our communities. 
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Narrative Report (continued) 
The strategic plan focuses our spending and resources over four year period on three key priorities: 

• Supporting people 

• Strong economy and places 

• Sustainable environment 

 

The plan’s 35 promises include: 

• Work with partners to promote cost of living support, provide practical help and pilot information events for residents. 

• Deliver 1000 affordable homes across the district including at least 15% in rural areas. 

• Create new facilities to provide housing and support to single homeless people in the district. 

• Work with partners to deliver a white-water facility in Pershore. 

• Work with partners to deliver sports and leisure improvements including improved pavilions for Badsey Sports Club and Bretforton 

Cricket Club and improved football facilities at Prince Henry’s High School and Inkberrow Football Club. 

• Invest to deliver major new employment spaces at Vale Park and Worcester Six. 

• Invest £180k over 4 years to provide grants to small and medium sized businesses to take on apprentices and a bursary to help 

overcome barriers to work. 

• Invest £100k over 4 years to promote the growth of the low carbon economy in Wychavon. 

• Increase car parking provision at Droitwich Spa, Honeybourne and Pershore railway stations and improve connectivity between the 

stations and towns. 

• Continue delivering our Intelligently Green Plan including carbon literacy training for staff and councillors, supporting low income 

households to improve energy efficiency and investigating the use of alternative low carbon emission fuels, such as hydrotreated 

vegetable oil, for waste collection vehicles. 

• Take action to reduce our own greenhouse gas emissions by at least 50% by 2024 against a 2018/19 baseline by reducing our energy 

consumption, purchasing energy from renewable sources and working with our leisure centres and waste contractor. 

• Reduce the average household black bin waste by at least 10% (2018/19 baseline) by 2026 through targeted waste reduction 

campaigns and incentivising at least five communities to set up community fridges to reduce their food waste. 

• Eliminate the use of herbicides and pesticides in all our parks and open spaces 

• Create ten hectares of new wetland and work with the Heart of England Forest and other partners to restore, enhance and create 30 

hectares of Biodiversity Action Plan priority habitats in the district. 
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Narrative Report (continued) 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

A net budget of £12.1m for 2022/23 was approved by full Council in February 2022. For a fifth year running Councillors agreed a freeze on 
council tax charges so Band D council tax remained at £120.08, the lowest council tax in Worcestershire and the fourth lowest in England. 

£2.914

-£0.899

£4.926
£0.172

£5.706

-£0.757

2022/23 Original Budget Allocations to Services 
£m Supporting People

Strong Economy & Places

Sustainable Environment

Cost of Grants to Parishes

Central & Support Costs

Interest on Investment of
Cash Balances

 

£3.114

-£0.781

£5.189

£0.172

£5.842

-£1.534

2022/23 Revised Budget Allocations to Services 
£m

Supporting People

Strong Economy & Places

Sustainable Environment

Cost of Grants to Parishes

Central & Support Costs

Interest on Investment of
Cash Balances

 

Supporting People covers services such as housing needs, 
elections, environmental health, leisure centres and public 
conveniences. 

Sustainable Environment is the largest share of our priorities 
and includes waste collection and recycling, street cleansing and 
parks. 

Our Strong Economy and Places priority includes car park and 
rental income (hence why the budget is negative) but also 
includes the planning, licensing and economic development 
services. 

Our net budget was revised down slightly to £12.0m in November 
2022 mainly due to additional interest expected on cash balances 
as interest rates started to rise. 

The net budget for our Supporting People priority increased by 
7% as a consequence of pay increases and increased community 
grant funding. 

Additional costs of our waste services, parks and open spaces 
due to pay and energy increases saw a 5% increase in our 
Sustainable Environment priority budgets. Increased pay costs 
led to an increase in our Strong Economy & Places priority. 
Central and Support services budgets increased by 2% to reflect 
pay increases. 
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Narrative Report (continued)  

Where the Money Went 

The 2022/23 outturn position is an underspend of £952k against the revised budget leading to a contribution to general reserves of 
£1.181m. This is reflective of strong financial management during a period of substantial change and uncertainty and was achieved 
through a monthly budget monitoring and challenge process which ensures that budget managers and directors are held accountable for 
variances to budgets, with budget monitoring reports circulated to all councillors quarterly. 

2021-22

Net Actual* 

Expenditure

Original* 

Budget

Revised 

Budget

Net Actual 

Expenditure * includes CCLA Property Fund

£m COUNCIL PRIORITIES £m £m £m and Diversified Income Fund

2.866           Supporting People 2.914      3.114      (0.344) as well as interest from loans

(1.586) Strong Economy & Places # (0.899) (0.781) (1.763) made by the Council.

4.332           Sustainable Environment 4.926      5.189      4.907           

5.181           Central & Support Costs 5.706      5.842      6.229           # excludes Special Levies.

10.793        NET COST OF SERVICES 12.647    13.364    9.029           

0.172           Cost of Grants to Parishes 0.172      0.172      0.172           

(0.749) Interest and Investment Income (0.757) (1.534) (2.406)

10.216        NET EXPENDITURE (budgets shown in charts above) 12.062    12.002    6.795           

(3.594) Non-specific Grants and Contributions (2.614) (2.614) (2.665)

(0.608) Covid-19 Emergency Funding 0.000 0.000 0.000 

0.828           Transfer to/(from) Earmarked Reserves (1.733) (1.900) 2.509 

2.517 Contribution to/(from) Balances 0.055 0.229 1.181 underspend of £0.952m

9.359           TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE 7.770      7.717      7.820           

(2.652) Business Rates (2.652) (2.652) (2.652)

(2.876) Business Rates Growth (2.000) (2.000) (3.627)

(3.576) Additional S. 31 Grant in lieu of extended reliefs 0.000 0.000 0.000 

(1.107) Lower Tier Services Grant (1.106) (1.053) (1.053)

0.000 Services Grant (0.183) (0.183) (0.183)

0.025 Collection Fund Deficit/(surplus) - Council Tax (0.083) (0.083) (0.083)

7.036 Collection Fund Deficit/(surplus) - Business Rates 4.596 4.596 6.120 

6.209           PRECEPT ON COLLECTION FUND 6.342      6.342      6.342           

2022-2023
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Narrative Report (continued) 

It should be noted that the table above reflects the net amount to be met by local taxpayers and differs from the Net Cost of Service in the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) because of the exclusion of costs relating to depreciation, revenue 

expenditure funded from capital under statute (REFCUS) and certain pension adjustments. This is due to requirements in the Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting which define proper accounting practices for local authorities and some transactions have to be 

reported differently in the financial statements to how they are reported in the budget. 

The variances contributing to an underspend of £952k are shown below.  

Major Budget Variances in 2022/23

£m

Overspend on the environmental health service with WRS 0.084

Underspends against homelessness services (0.196)

Additional income received from housing private leasing schemes (0.099)

Homes for Ukraine funding transferred to reserves for future years (2.231)

Additional income from car parking (0.304)

Additional income from out of district parking services (0.069)

Overspends in Planning Policy including the South Worcestershire Development Plan 0.121

Additional income from licensing including taxi licence fees (0.109)

Underspends across waste collection services (0.240)

Increase in the bad debt provision for sundry debts 0.118

Overspend on IT equipment 0.094

Underspend on the Property service due to staff vacancies (0.094)

Additional investment income received (0.872)

Additional transfers to earmarked reserves incl Homes for Ukraine funding 4.409

Additional business rates growth (1.627)

Other smaller budget variances 0.063

(0.952)
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Narrative Report (continued) 

The gross cost of service provision amounts to £62.828m in 2022/23 and has been analysed by type as shown below: 

£12.203

£2.096

£5.915

£12.565

£19.488

£6.398

£2.914
£1.190

£0

£5

£10

£15

£20

£25

£m

Gross Expenditure by Type

£m 2021/22

£m 2022/23

 

 

Our service expenditure is split between staffing (employees) and other running costs including capital charges. Running costs include the 
costs of running our buildings, transport, the payments we make to suppliers and contractors and the payments we make to people 
receiving benefits (called transfer payments here). Capital charges are made to cover the annual value of depreciation of our assets and 
also for any capital spend that does not increase the value of our assets. 

The reduction in capital charges in 2022/23 relates to the fact that assets sold in 22/23 no longer attract capital charges. 
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Narrative Report (continued) 

The reduction in transfer payments in 2022/23 relates to housing benefit payments which have been reducing year on year as customers 
move to Universal Credit (£0.4m). The reduction in supplies and services in 2022/23 relates to the ending of Covid-19 grant spending.  

Where the Money Came From 

24% of our income is now raised through council tax and business rates but the government still provides our main source of income in the 
form of specific grants of which the largest is Housing Benefit Subsidy. 

9.229
7.561

10.449

1.036

27.027

2.556
4.028

6.813

1.145

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Council Tax
income

Business Rates
income

Fees & Charges Interest &
investment

income

Govt grants incl.
Housing Benefit

Subsidy

New Homes
Bonus

Shared Service
Contributions

Other grants &
contribution

Other

£m

Where the Money Came From 2022/23

£m 2021/22

£m 2022/23

 

The reduction in government grants including Housing Benefit Subsidy is due to a reduction in Housing Benefit Subsidy as customers 
moved to Universal Credit. 
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Narrative Report (continued) 

Cashflows and Assets  

 

CAPITAL CASHFLOWS

REVENUE CASHFLOWS

BR

Ctax

Total Assets Brought Forward
£224m

Additions 
£6m

Disposals
-£45m

Revaluations
£32m

Total Assets Carried Forwards
£217m

Property, Plant 
& Equipment

£64m

Investment 
Property

£33m

Other Long 
Term Assets

£26m

Current Assets
£94m

Total Resources
£212m

Business Rates
£59m

Council Tax
£101m

Grants/Contributions 
£41m

Fees & Charges
£10m

Paid to Others
£119m

Retained by Wychavon
£70m

Business Rates
£24m

Council Tax
£95m

Interest & Invest 
income

£1m

 

Wychavon District Council manages cashflows and assets of 
£429m, in the main by: 

• Collecting £59m in business rates. The Council keeps only a 
proportion of this with most going to central government and 
Worcestershire County Council. 

• Collecting £101m in council tax. The largest share is paid over 
to Worcestershire County Council. 

• Managing a £123m portfolio of land, buildings and other 
assets. 

• Accounting for £52m of fees and charges, grant funding, rents 
and investment income which are used to help deliver 
services and keep council tax down. 

Note: the Collection Fund deficits from 2020/21 – a consequence of the Covid-19 
pandemic – mean that more was paid out in Council Tax and Business Rates receipts 
to preceptors and retained by the billing authority than was collected in the year. The 
£59m collected in business rates in 2022/23 includes £15m of deficit payments paid by 
preceptors. 
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Narrative Report (continued)  

Capital Strategy 

The Council has a five-year capital investment programme of just over £38m.  

Our revised plan for the year 2022/23 was to allocate £17.719m on capital projects, but variations on some projects, mainly due to the 
difficulty of appointing contractors, resulted in actual capital expenditure of £9.410m, a variation of £8.309m. The capital programme is not 
static and projects are added throughout the year; many projects are multi-year meaning that apportioning estimates of spend to specific 
years (profiling the spend) involves an element of estimation. The main variances are shown below:

• Road construction as part of the redevelopment of Vale Park 
(project underspend £213k, project not yet complete) 

• Investment in the Worcester Six business park extension to 
encourage business relocation to Wychavon (£1m waiting on 
Worcestershire County Council to draw down the monies) 

• Construction of a multi-user route between Evesham town 
centre and The Valley (project underspend £309k. Delayed 
due to on-going discussions with partners) 

• Investment in public open spaces and parks across the district 
(project underspend £470k. Project completion now expected 
in 2023/24 

• Refurbishment works at the Furlong Depot, Droitwich (project 
underspend £130k). Project completion now expected in 
2023/24 

• Scheme to build a 3G pitch at Prince Henry’s High School 
(project underspend £300k). Project expected to complete in 
2024. 

• Redevelopment of Evesham Public Hall (project underspend 
£750k. Project completion expected in future years.) 

• A scheme to provide Community Legacy Grants to parish 
councils for capital schemes (project underspend £1.4m). The 
scheme is now extended into 2023/24. 

• Ambitious plans to build a new footbridge and car park at 
Pershore Station (project underspend £1.4m). Footbridge 
solutions are being investigated. 

 

 

In
tro

d
u

ctio
n

 an
d

 N
arrative R

ep
o

rt 2
0

2
2

/2
3

 

SUBJE
CT T

O A
UDIT



15 | P a g e  

 

Narrative Report (continued) 

Capital expenditure is financed from a combination of capital receipts, grant funding and the Councils’ own financial resources. The table 
below shows our 2022/23 capital spend and how it was financed.   

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2022/23 £m FINANCING OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE £m

Priority - Supporting People

Better Care Fund 988 Capital receipts 4,934

Public Toilet Refurbishment 232 Capital grants and Contributions 1,746

Droitwich 3G Pitch 614 Capital expenditure charged to revenue (CERA)* 2,765

Droitwich Leisure Centre Feasibility Study 316

Preserved Rght to Buy at Blackminster, Badsey 139 TOTAL FINANCING 9,445

Voluntary Right to Buy - South Littleton 1,401

Evesham Cycling Centre 1,867 * including New Homes Bonus and Section 106 contributions

Community Legacy Grants 570

Oat Street Public Toilet Refurbishment 106

Building Enhancements 74

Other small schemes 93

6,400

Priority - Strong Economy & Places

Vale Park Development Fund 2,363

Other small schemes 73

2,436

Priority - Sustainable Environment

Public Open Spaces Improvements, Evesham 418

Parks Improvements Programme 116

Other small schemes 75

609

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 2022/23 9,445
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Narrative Report (continued) 

Our Treasury Management Performance 

 
The Council agreed a Treasury Management Policy and Strategy for 2022/23 in February 2022 and this is a key document in the 
management of the Council’s finances. The actual income received from cash investments in 2022/2023 was £757k (compared to £391k 
in 2021/22) which was slightly lower than the revised budget for the year. The overall rate of return on sums invested during the year was 
1.93% (compared to 0.40% in 2021/22) which was 0.27% below the target 7-day Sterling Overnight Index Average (0.25% above in 
2021/22). The increase since 2021/22 is due to the Bank of England raising base rate post COVID-19, followed by continued increases in 
base rate due to the cost-of-living crisis. Due to this, we have been able to secure higher interest rates on our cash loans. In addition, the 
Council received £148k (£181k in 2021/22) as dividend income from its investment in a Local Authorities’ Property Fund and a further 
£198k in dividends (£128k in 2021/22) from a Diversified Income Fund.  

The Council’s primary treasury management focus continued to be centred on managing treasury risk as well as ensuring that the Council 
retained sufficient liquidity to support its service delivery aims and to pay out grant support schemes to support local businesses and 
residents. This was reflected in the counterparties named in the Treasury Management Strategy that the Council could either deposit cash 
with or lend money to. These were the Bank of England, the four major UK high street banking groups, Santander UK, Handelsbanken 
Plc, Close Brothers Ltd, Investec Bank Ltd, Goldman Sachs, 7 Building Societies, 8 overseas banks (Commonwealth Bank of Australia, 
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Ltd, Toronto Dominion Bank, United Overseas Bank Ltd, DBS Bank Ltd, 2 Landesbanks, and 
First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC) and other local authorities. The Treasury Management Strategy also allows the council to purchase units in 
Pooled Investment Funds such as money market funds with a AAAm credit rating and two Pooled Investment Funds managed by CCLA 
Investment Management Ltd, namely the Local Authorities Property Fund and the Diversified Income Fund.  

The Council has previously diversified some of its cash 
investments into directly owned property assets such as the 
Waitrose supermarket developments in Droitwich and Evesham 
(shown opposite), Pershore Hospital & GP Surgery and other 
investments identified in Note 38 to the Accounts.  The 
unadjusted lease income from the largest investments: Waitrose 
supermarkets, Pershore Hospital and GP Surgery, was £1.341m 
in 2022/23 (£1.329m in 2021/22). 
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 Narrative Report (continued) 

 
Reserves and Balances Summary 

Sound financial management and a strong track record of striking the right balance between spending and the need to maintain a core 
level of resources to support the revenue account means that we end the year with our finances in a healthy state and with our Council 
Tax still amongst the lowest nationally. The state of our financial well-being is reflected in the level of reserves that we hold. 

We maintain several earmarked reserves. These are special reserves we keep for specific types of expenditure in the future. Examples 
include the Section 106 Developers’ Contributions Reserve, New Homes Bonus Reserve and a Regeneration Reserve. Whilst we used 
some £10.470m of earmarked reserves in the year we also added £10.043m, resulting in a net reduction of £427k and giving a net 
balance at the year-end of £71.236m*. Full details are given in Note 20 to the accounts.  

We also hold revenue working balances to give us a cushion should something unexpected happen, as well as providing us with day-to-
day cash flow cover. Working balances increased by £1.181m* during the year, giving a balance of £14.616m at the year end.  

*From Movement in Reserves Statement 

 

Pensions 

The Council is a member of the Worcestershire County Council Pension Fund, a Local Government Pension Fund, and all staff can join 
this from the commencement of their employment with the Council. The Council’s share of the net pension liability of the Fund on 31 
March 2023, as estimated by the fund actuary, was £5.0m* compared to £43.0m* on 31 March 2022. The material variation between years 
is a remeasurement gain due to changes in financial assumptions by the actuary: an increase in corporate bond yields and a decrease in 
CPI inflation over the year. In addition, there has been a gain from a change in demographic assumptions mostly relating to mortality 
assumptions where life expectancy improvements have slowed compared to prior analysis. (*from the Balance Sheet) 

Further details on changes in the Council’s pension assets and liabilities can be found in Note 14 to the Core Financial Statements. 

It is important to understand that the net pension liability valuation on 31 March is as at one point in time only and as the fund assets are 
mainly invested in equities and bonds, then the value of these and therefore the net pension liability, can vary considerably as market 
values change.   
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Narrative Report (continued) 

 
Business Rates Retention Scheme 

With effect from April 2013, the Government introduced a Business Rates Retention Scheme. This scheme was introduced with the aim of 

incentivising councils to grow the Business Rates base in their area by allowing them to retain a proportion of the increase in Business 

Rates yield each year to spend on Council services. Previously councils had paid all Business Rates income to the Government for 

redistribution. Under this scheme the Government also permits councils to work together to pool their Business Rates as this can be 

helpful in managing the ups and downs in Business Rates growth over a larger area. In 2022/23 Wychavon became a member of the 

Worcestershire Business Rates Pool, formed on 1 April 2022, along with all the Worcestershire councils.  

 

After pooling locally and making the necessary payments to the Government, the Council generated £3.627m from business rates growth.  

Business Rates growth is largely due to new businesses being built in the district and increasing rateable values of properties following the 

2017 Valuation Office listing. 

 

A Business Rates Appeals Provision is maintained against the number of appeals made to the Valuation Office. This provision reduced by 

£1.2m, from £5m at the end of 2021/22, to £3.8m at the end of 2022/23. The decrease in provision is mainly due to a reduction in appeals 

being upheld.   
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Narrative Report (continued) 

 

Progress in the Year 

 
This Narrative Report attempts to bring the figures in our statement of accounts alive by showing how we converted the cash into services. 

Highlights for each of our three priorities include: 

 

Supporting People – supporting those most in need, reducing homelessness and delivering affordable homes, improving health 

and well-being, improving access to local transport 

 

• Helped more than 1,000 people find a home or get off the streets 

• Provided funding to feed almost 3,800 children in school breakfast clubs 

• Paid out more than £6m in energy bills support 

• Secured £1.2m to upgrade the energy efficiency of homes 

• Delivered the first of three Mini Medics sessions to 9-13 year olds with a focus on looking after their own mental health and becoming 

mental health first aid champions in their school 

• Supported the Droitwich Wellbeing Hub at Westlands First School to deliver over 240 hours of counselling to children and families from 

the Droitwich West ward and beyond 

• Supported the delivery of 112 new affordable homes, 48 of these were in rural areas. We have now delivered a total of 748 affordable 

homes against our target of 1,000 by March 2024 

• Completed the new world-class £2 million Evesham VeloPark facility which was officially opened for public use in December 2022. 

• Welcomed more than 350 Ukrainian guests in 2022 

• Although the impacts of economic pressures and rising energy costs are starting to be felt by Wychavon Leisure, swimming lessons 

continue to be in demand and there were over 260,000 visits to our leisure centres in just one quarter 

• Invested £1.5m in community projects through our Community Legacy Grants 
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Narrative Report (continued) 

 

Strong Economy and Places – growing the local economy, transforming our town centres, improving links, encouraging 

sustainable developments 

 

• Launched major new investment plans for our town centres 

• Completed the sale of phase two land at Vale Park in late October 2022 and the construction of three commercial buildings 

commenced, to support economic growth 

• Dealt with 2,249 planning applications 

• Paid nine apprentice grants to small and medium-sized businesses 

• We were notified about our successful UK Shared Prosperity Fund allocation in December 2022, which amounts to nearly £4million 

over three years which will help regenerate the district 

• Discovered a potential roman road with our YouTube video going viral 

• Supported numerous festive events throughout the district including the Town Council-led Christmas light switch-ons and the inaugural 

Evesham Christmas Fayre 

• Published the South Worcestershire Development Plan Review and supporting evidence for consultation in November. Received 1,500 

consultation responses 

• Finalised the concept plans for new settlements at Worcestershire Parkway and Throckmorton Airfield for inclusion in the publication 

version of the South Worcestershire Development Plan Review 

 

Sustainable Environment – tackling climate change, reducing crime, minimising waste, improving the natural environment 

 

• Replaced more than 400 windows in our offices and trialled new eco-fuels in our partner’s waste fleet to help cut our carbon emissions 

• Launched a major tree planting scheme with partners 

• Won 6 flag awards for our parks 

• Emptied 60,000 plus bins every week and helped people cut their food waste 

• Unveiled our greenest set of public toilets at Waterside in Evesham and cleaned up at the Loo of the Year awards 

• Reached 1000s of children with our free anti-litter sessions 

• Dealt with 1,500 environmental crimes 
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Narrative Report (continued) 

 

• Rolled out carbon literacy training with staff and there will be regular sessions during 2023/24 

• Signed a Memorandum of Understanding with Evesham Street Pastors and agreed financial support to enable them to continue 

providing their vital service on Fridays and Saturdays in Evesham town centre. We also supported the Police’s anti-violence bee at 

several locations across the district 

• Our food waste prevention advert began running on Sky and Virgin at the end of 2022. We also ran a Christmas Savvy waste reduction 

campaign and encouraged reuse of pumpkin waste after Halloween. Initial results from waste analysis sampling show food waste 

accounts for nearly a third of the contents of the average Wychavon household’s black bin 

• Continued work on the Local Biodiversity Action Plan, developing tailored advice for parish and town councils to encourage small scale 

actions to support pollinators. 

 

LOOKING AHEAD 

A new council will be elected at the local elections in May 2023 and may have new priorities and ideas. That doesn’t mean there will be a 
gap where nothing happens. Our council plan runs for one more year and we also have an investment plan for 2023/24. Here are just 
some of the things we will deliver or start work on over the next 12 months: 

• Continuing to support projects to improve the life chances of the most disadvantaged children across Wychavon. 
• More affordable housing, particularly in rural areas, with £3.4 million allocated to new housing projects. 
• Work with partners to promote cost of living support, provide practical help and pilot information events for residents. 
• £1 million for further investment at Worcester Six business park to create new jobs and investment. 
• £1 million of Community Legacy Grants for new projects. 
• Redeveloping Droitwich Spa Leisure Centre, a white water facility in Pershore and £1.5 million towards community sports facilities 

at Pershore High School. 
• £945,000 for town centre improvement projects, tourism growth, festivals and events. 
• £360,000 in new business grant funding and £190,000 to fund business support activities from 2023 to 2025. 
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Narrative Report (continued) 

 

As we move into 2023/24, the Council is monitoring closely the impact of the cost-of-living crisis on its businesses and on the local 

economy. The cost-of-living crisis is likely to have an effect on taxation, an increasingly important share of our resources, as well as an 

effect on services such as housing and homelessness. We will monitor closely the effect on both council tax and business rates, as well as 

services, throughout the year. We are fortunate to have a sound financial base however there are further challenges ahead including the 

outcome of the Government’s Fair Funding Review and the planned business rates revaluation which were delayed further by the 

pandemic. With the other Worcestershire councils we continue to respond to consultations on these issues and to monitor proposals so 

that we can protect the Council’s position as far as possible. 

 

We continue to scrutinise budgets as part of our annual budget setting process to ensure that we keep our spending to a prudent level and 

we continue to use transformation and efficiency processes to help us transform our services and make them even more efficient. As one 

of the South Worcestershire councils we share with them a Revenues and Benefits service which brings additional service and financial 

benefits for the Council and our residents. The Council continues to share a Chief Executive and Senior Management Team with Malvern 

Hills District Council, which has resulted in cost savings, better resilience and improved services for both councils. 
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Annual Governance Statement 2022/23 

1. Scope and Responsibility  

Wychavon District Council (WDC) is responsible for ensuring that 

• its business is conducted in accordance with legal requirements and proper standards,  

• public money is safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  

WDC also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in 

which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

In discharging this overall responsibility, WDC is responsible for maintaining proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, 

facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the management of risk.  

This Annual Governance Statement has been prepared in accordance with the Delivering Good Governance in Local Government 

Framework.  

2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework  

The governance framework shown in the attached diagram comprises the cultural values, systems and processes, used by WDC to direct 

and control its activities, enabling it to engage, lead and account to the community. The framework enables WDC to monitor the 

achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether these have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.  

The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot 

eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance 

of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the 

achievement of WDC’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised and to 

manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  

The governance framework has been in place at WDC for the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of approval of the statement 

of accounts.  
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Annual Governance Statement 2022/23 (continued) 

 

3. The Governance Framework  

The Council’s purpose is “to be a leading, responsive and innovative council working to improve people’s lives”. WDC’s priorities are 

reviewed annually and cascaded through the corporate planning process into service plans and the staff annual reviews and into 

individual personal objectives. WDC’s performance management framework sets out how its objectives, priorities and promises are to be 

achieved. Monitoring of performance against agreed plans and strategies is undertaken by managers and reported quarterly to the 

Executive Board through the Signals of Success report. WDC’s Constitution contains the necessary approvals and rules for governance, 

including delegations to Committees and Officers. During 2022/23 the Chief Executive as the Head of Paid Service, the Director of Legal 

& Governance as the Monitoring Officer, and the Deputy Chief Executive as the Chief Finance Officer, each carried statutory 

responsibilities relating to the governance of the Council. 

Executive decision making is carried out through the Executive Board, the Planning Committee and the senior management team. 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee has responsibility to review and scrutinise the activities of the Council and provide advice on the 

development of policies. The Audit Committee receives reports on the work of internal and external audit, sets its own work priorities and 

acts independently of member or officer influence.  

WDC has approved a formal risk management strategy and regularly reviews and updates its strategic and operational risks. The Council 

continues to ensure that a risk management culture is embedded within service management with key risks being assigned to individuals 

for management.  

WDC’s Financial Regulations set out the parameters for the financial management of the Council; Heads of Service are responsible for 

the financial management of the services and activities delegated to them. Budget monitoring is carried out monthly at officer level, with 

monthly reports to all councillors. In addition, there are a range of both nationally and locally determined performance indicators against 

which performance is monitored during the year and the audited results are published on an annual basis.  

4. Review of Effectiveness  

Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 sets out WDC’s responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 

effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. This review is informed by the assurances provided by 

the Heads of Service who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the Chief Internal 

Auditor’s annual report and by comments made by the external auditors, other review agencies and inspectorates.  
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Annual Governance Statement 2022/23 (continued) 

 

The Council Constitution clearly identifies the terms of reference, role and responsibilities of full Council, the Executive, Overview and 

Scrutiny, Audit and Standards Committees, all of which have fully understood governance responsibilities.  

Throughout 2022/23, the Council adopted a robust approach to corporate governance, which has been advised through the work of the 

Audit Committee and the Overview and Scrutiny Committee – as well as the statutory roles of the Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring 

Officer. The approach taken to compiling this statement is summarised on the Annual Governance Statement framework diagram 

overleaf.  

Audit Committee  

Audit Committee played a role by reviewing and monitoring internal control issues throughout the year. This included a review of risk 

management and updates to the corporate risk register, regular progress reports and updates from internal audit. In addition, the 

committee considered the reports issued by the external auditor such as the Annual Audit and Inspection letter, as well as Council’s action 

plans in response to any recommendations. 

Internal Audit 

WDC’s responsibility for maintaining an effective internal audit function is set out in Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

2015.  

The Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Team operates in accordance with best practice professional standards and guidelines. 

It independently and objectively reviews on a continuous basis, the extent to which the internal control environment supports and 

promotes the achievement of the Council’s objectives and contributes to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources.  

During 2022/23 the Internal Audit team delivered a comprehensive programme including:  

• Core financial audits which are designed to suitably assist the external auditors to reach their “opinion”.  

• A range of service area audits, follow up audits and special investigations which assisted the council to maintain/improve its control 

systems and risk management processes or implement/reinforce oversight of such systems.  
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Annual Governance Statement 2022/23 (continued) 

 

Internal Audit’s work programme helps to assure the Audit Committee that the framework and statement can be relied upon based on the 

following:  

• Evidence streams which were verifiable and could be relied upon,  

• Monitoring and reporting mechanisms were in place to report issues,  

• These streams and reporting mechanisms are embedded in the WDC governance process.  

Based on good audit practice, audit risk scores were reviewed during the year. The risk scores are used to prioritise and inform the audit 

plan for the following financial year for approval by the Audit Committee.  

Internal Audit reports are considered by the relevant Director of Service and Deputy Chief Executive, before submission to the Audit 

Committee for further scrutiny. The reports have not identified any governance issues which have caused major concern during the 

course of the year: thirteen reports gave full to moderate assurance. The Head of Internal Audit has concluded that control arrangements 

in 2022/23 are generally adequate and have effectively managed the principal risks identified in the audit plan and can be reasonably 

relied upon to ensure that the Council’s corporate objectives have been met. 

Managers’ Responsibility  

Directors of Service are responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control within their own services. 

Head of Service are also required to sign off annual Governance and Internal Control returns where they will raise any items of concern. 

No major issues were identified by Directors of Service in 2022/23. 

The Council’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on The Role of the 

Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010). The Deputy Chief Executive has statutory responsibility for the proper management of 

the Council’s finances and is a key member of the Senior Management Team.  

External Audit and Other Review Agencies  

WDC’s external auditors have not identified any significant weaknesses in our internal control arrangements when working with us 

throughout the year and in their annual audit letter. The external auditors have issued an unqualified Value for Money conclusion.  
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Annual Governance Statement 2022/23 (continued) 

 

5. Significant Governance and Internal Control Issues  

The statutory duties of the Monitoring Officer and the Chief Finance Officer require them to draw to members attention any improper 

practices, financial imprudence or problems with the systems of internal control. No significant weaknesses or issues have been identified. 

 

7. Conclusion  

 

To the best of our knowledge, the overall governance arrangements as described and detailed above have been operating effectively 

during the year. Our assessment, that the corporate governance is good, is supported by the findings and evidence indicated in this 

statement and a lack of identified corporate issues. In addition, we are satisfied that the Council has adopted a response that is 

appropriate for its fraud and corruption risks and commits to maintain its vigilance to tackle fraud. 

 

Any areas of improvement identified during the managers’ annual survey will be progressed and will be monitored for implementation and 

operation during the year and any material areas of interest reported as part of next year’s annual governance statement. 

 

 

BRADLEY THOMAS     VIC ALLISON 

Leader of the Council     Chief Executive 

Date X September 2023    Date X September 2023 
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Statement of Accounting Policies 
 

1.  General Principles 

1.1 The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2022/23 financial year and its position at the year end of 
31 March 2023. The Council is required to prepare an annual statement of accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 in 
accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom 2022/23 supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  The accounting convention 
adopted is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 

 

2.  Accruals of Income and Expenditure 

2.1 Activity is accounted for in the year in which it takes place. This means that income from the sale of goods or the provision of 
services is recorded in our accounts when the goods or services are transferred to the service recipient in accordance with the 
performance obligations in the contract. Expenditure is recorded in our accounts when services are received, rather than when we 
actually make a payment, and supplies are recorded as expenditure when we use them or as inventories on the Balance Sheet until 
that point. Interest receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial 
instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract. Where income and expenditure have been recognised but 
cash has not been received/paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where debts may not 
be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

3.  Apprenticeship Levy 

3.1 The apprenticeship levy is payable by qualifying employers to provide funding to support apprenticeships. The expense for levy funded 
training is not a cash transaction for the Council but is recognised as an expense, being a tax based on employee cost. Payments 
received into the Council’s digital apprenticeship service account are not cash transactions but are accounted for as a government 
grant and the income is recognised when the levy-funded training expense has been incurred. 

4.  Cash and Cash Equivalents 

4.1 Cash is money held in current bank accounts and overdrafts that are repayable on demand and are integral to daily cash flow 

management. Money held in call accounts and short-term funds invested for a term of three months or less are classified as cash 

equivalents because they are readily available to be converted to cash.  
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

5.  Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets 

5.1 Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding non-current 
assets during the year: 

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service; 

• Revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation 
Reserve against which the losses can be written off; 

• Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 

5.2 The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses or amortisation. However, it is 
required to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (Minimum Revenue 
Provision or MRP). Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore replaced by the MRP contribution 
in the General Fund balance by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the MIRS for the difference 
between the two. 

 

6.  Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates (Business Rates) 

6.1 Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and business rates on behalf of major preceptors (including government for 
business rates) and, as principals, collecting council tax and business rates for themselves. As a billing authority we are required by 
statute to maintain a separate fund (called the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council 
tax and business rates. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major preceptors and central 
government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the amount of council tax and business rates collected could be less or 
more than predicted. 

6.2 The council tax and business rate income included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) is the Council’s 
share of accrued income for the year. However regulations determine the amount of council tax and business rates that must be 
included in the Council’s General Fund. Therefore the difference between the income included in the CIES and the amount required 
by regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling 
amount in the MIRS. The Balance Sheet includes the Council’s share of the end-of-year balances in respect of council tax and business 
rates relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, overpayments and prepayments. Where debtor balances are 
identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that payments due under the statutory  
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

arrangements will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Collection Fund. The impairment loss is measured 
as the difference between the carrying amount and the revised future cash flows. 

7.  Employee Benefits 

7.1 Benefits Payable During Employment: the accounts reflect entitlements that have been earned by employees, such as salaries 
and wages, as a consequence of the service completed by them as at 31 March each year even if we would never normally make 
payments for them, such as annual leave and time-off in lieu not yet taken. These are accrued for in the cost of services in the CIES 
but we currently consider the accrual immaterial for inclusion in our accounts. 

7.2 Termination Benefits: these are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an officer’s employment 
before the normal retirement age or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy and are recognised immediately as an 
expense to the service in the CIES at the earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer or when we recognise costs of 
a restructuring. Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the General Fund 
balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund in the year, not the amount calculated according 
to the relevant accounting standards. In the MIRS appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the 
notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the 
pension fund and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.  

7.3 Post Employment Benefits: as part of the terms and conditions of employment we offer one defined benefits scheme (retirement 
lump sums and pensions), administered by Worcestershire County Council.  Although these benefits will not actually be payable until 
the employee retires, we account for post-employment benefits in the CIES at the time that employees earn their future entitlement.  

• The liabilities of the Worcestershire County Council Local Government Pension Scheme attributable to the Council are included in 
the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method – i.e. an assessment of future payments that will be made 
in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover 
rates, etc. and projected earnings for current employees; 

• Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices using a discount rate prescribed by the actuary; 

• The assets of the pension scheme are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value: 

▪ Quoted securities – current bid price; 

▪ Unquoted securities – professional estimate; 
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

▪ Unitised securities – current bid price; 

▪ Property – market value. 

7.4 The change in the net pensions liability (also called the net defined benefit liability) is analysed into the following components: 
 

• Service cost, comprising: 

▪ Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year – allocated in the CIES to the 
services for which employees worked; 

▪ Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or curtailment whose effect relates to years 
of service earned in earlier years – debited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the CIES; 

▪ Net interest on the net defined benefit liability  – i.e. net interest expense for the Council - the change during the year in the 
net defined benefit liability that arises from the passage of time – charged to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line on the CIES – this is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation 
at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability at the beginning of the period – taking into account any 
changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 

• Re-measurements, comprising: 

▪ The return in plan assets– excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability – charged to the 
Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure; 

▪ Actuarial gains and losses  – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events have not coincided with 
assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions – charged to the 
Pensions Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

• Contributions paid to the pension scheme – cash paid as employers contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; 
not accounted for as an expense. 

7.5 In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by 
the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting  
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

 
standards.  In the MIRS this means that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and 
credits for retirement benefits and replace them with the debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such  

 
amounts payable but unpaid at the year end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the 
beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as 
benefits are earned by employees. 

 
7.6 Discretionary Benefits: we also have restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early 

retirements.  Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to 
make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 

 

8.  Fair Value Measurement 

8.1 We value several classes of our assets at fair value. This is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 

8.2 We use appropriate valuation techniques, maximising the use of relevant known data and thereby minimising the use of estimates or 
subjective valuations. We assess the level of uncertainty by assigning our assets into three categories:  

Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the authority can access at the measurement 
date; 
 
Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; 
 

Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

 

9.  Financial Instruments 

9.1 A financial instrument is defined as a transaction which generates an asset in the accounts of one organisation and a liability in the 
accounts of another. These are generally loans, investments or borrowings.  
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

9.2 The disclosures relating to financial instruments within the Statement of Accounts are made to assist the reader to evaluate: 

• The significance of financial instruments on the Council’s financial position and performance, and 

• The risks arising from financial instruments and how the Council manages those risks. 

9.3 Financial Liabilities: these are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are carried at amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied 
by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised. For any external borrowing that the 
Council has this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable plus accrued interest 
and interest charged to the CIES is the amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement. 

9.4 Financial Assets: these are classified based on our business model for holding them and their cash flow characteristics. There are 
three main classes: 

• amortised cost; 

• fair value through profit or loss (FVPL); and 

• fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) 

9.5 The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. Financial Assets are therefore classified as 
amortised cost, except for those whose contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash 
flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument) which are measured at fair value through profit and loss. The Council does not 
hold any financial assets that are required to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 

9.6 Financial Assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their 
amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES for interest receivable are 
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the financial  
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

assets of the Council, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable plus 
accrued interest and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

9.7 However, the Council also recognises expected material credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised cost, either on a 
12 month or lifetime basis, including lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade receivables  

(debtors) held by the Council. Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take 
place because the borrower could default their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has 
increased significantly since an instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not 
increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis on 12-month expected losses. In both cases the Council 
calculates losses based on past due information. 

9.8 The Council has made a loan to a voluntary organisation at less than market rate (soft loan). When soft loans are made a loss is 
recorded in the CIES (debited to the appropriate service) for the present value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the 
instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding principal. Any interest received is credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund 
balance is the interest receivable for the financial year – the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the CIES to the net 
gain required against the General Fund balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in 
the MIRS. Any gains or losses that arise on de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the Financing and Investment 
Income line of the CIES. 

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVPL) 

9.9 Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as 
they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.  

9.10 The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques: 

• Instruments with quoted market prices – the market price; 

• Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow analysis. 
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

10.  Going Concern 

10.1 Local Authorities cannot be created or dissolved without statutory prescription. The provisions of the CIPFA Code on going concern 
reflect the economic and statutory environment in which local authorities operate and hence these accounts are prepared on the 
basis that the functions of the Council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. 

11.  Grants 

11.1 Grants are shown in the accounts in the year that they relate to rather than when we actually receive them. They are only shown in 
the accounts if we are certain that we will receive them. General grants we receive are shown as Taxation and Non-Specific Grant 
Income in the CIES. Revenue grants we receive to pay for spending on specific service activities are shown as income for the 
relevant service area when we are confident that any grant conditions have been met. Where revenue grants have conditions 
outstanding the grant is held as a receipt in advance; if the conditions are met but the grant remains unspent it is held in an 
earmarked reserve. 

 
11.2 Capital grants are also credited to the CIES when any relevant conditions governing their use have been met. This income is then 

reversed out and charged to the Capital Adjustment Account upon use, so the level of council tax is not affected. Unused non-
conditional capital grants are held in the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Before the conditions are met, capital grants are also 
held on the Balance Sheet as a receipt in advance. 

 
11.3 The Council has elected to charge a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). This levy is charged on new builds (chargeable 

developments for the authority) with appropriate planning consent. The Council charges for and collects the levy, which is a planning 
charge. CIL regulations require a percentage of each amount levied to be retained by the Council to cover administration costs and a 
further percentage to be allocated to the Town and Parish Councils in which the development takes place. The remaining income will 
be used to fund a number of infrastructure projects to support the development of the district. CIL is received without outstanding 
conditions and it is therefore recognised at the commencement date of the chargeable development in the CIES in accordance with 
the accounting policy for grants above.     

 

12.    Heritage Assets 

12.1 Heritage Assets are those with cultural, environmental or historical significance that make their preservation for future generations 
important. These are required to be shown separately on the Council’s Balance Sheet and are recognised and measured in 
accordance with the Council’s accounting policies for Property, Plant and Equipment. 
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued 
 

13.  Intangible Assets 

13.1 Intangible assets are non-financial non-current assets that do not have a physical substance and are controlled by the Council 
through custody or legal rights (such as software licences). We treat intangible assets in the same way as other non-current assets.  

We gradually reduce the value of intangible assets on a straight-line basis over their useful life to reflect the consumption of the 

economic or service benefit and charge this to the CIES. Intangible assets are valued at amortised historic cost. 

14.  Inventories 

14.1 Inventories are materials or supplies that will be consumed in producing goods or providing services. Inventories are included in the 
Balance Sheet at the lower of cost or net realisable value. 

 

15.  Investment Properties 

15.1 Investment property assets are those held for rental purposes or capital value appreciation or both, they are not used for the delivery 
of services. Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value (See Accounting Policy 8). These 
properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions at the year-end. Gains and losses on 
revaluation are posted to Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the CIES. The same treatment is applied to gains and 
losses on disposal.  

15.2 Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the CIES 
and result in a gain for the General Fund balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory 
arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund balance so they are therefore reversed out of the General Fund balance in the 
MIRS and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than the de-minimis level of £10,000) the 
Capital Receipts Reserve.  

16.  Joint Operations 

16.1 The Council participates in a number of Shared Services under contractual arrangements with other Councils and is a partner in the 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services Board. These arrangements are accounted for as Jointly Controlled Operations. A Jointly 
Controlled operation uses the assets and resources of the partner authorities without the establishment of a separate entity. Under 
these arrangements each participant in the arrangement accounts separately for its own transactions including the use of assets, 
liabilities, income, expenditure and cash flows.  
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

16.2 The Council hosts the Revenues and Benefits Shared Service (SWRBSS) and the IT Shared Service and, as such, accounts for the 
income and expenditure incurred by these services, including expenditure paid to Civica, a strategic partner, in respect of the 
Revenues and Benefits service and income from Worcester City Council and Malvern Hills District Council, its partners in the 
arrangements. Additionally, the Council hosts the following services: Procurement, Human Resources including payroll, Planning 
Policy, Planning Support and Heritage. 

17.  Leases 

17.1 Leases can be designated as either finance leases or operating leases. Finance leases are those where substantially all the risks 
and rewards relating to the leased asset transfer to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Where a lease 
covers both land and buildings each element is considered separately for classification.  

17.2 Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted for 
under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of specific assets.  

17.3 Council as Lessee for Operating Leases: rentals payable are charged to the relevant service revenue account in the CIES on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  

17.4 Council as Lessor for Operating Leases: rentals receivable are credited to Other Operating Expenditure line in the CIES on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.  

The Council has no material finance leases either as lessee or lessor.  
 

18.  Overheads and Support Services 

18.1 All support service costs are held within the service area within which they are managed. This means effectively that the cost of the 
overheads are shown in total as ‘Central and Support Costs’ in the CIES.  

 

19.  Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates 
 
19.1 Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. Changes in accounting 

estimates are accounted for prospectively i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior 
period adjustment. 
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

19.2 Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or 
relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial  
performance. Where a change is made it is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and 
comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 

 

20.  Property, Plant and Equipment 

20.1 Assets that have physical substance, are held for use in the production or supply of services and that are expected to be used in 
more than one financial year are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE). 

 
20.2 Recognition: our spending on buying, creating or improving PPE is classed as capital spending provided that it is probable that the 

future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to us and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. Spending that does not provide a significant benefit in terms of value, asset life or service performance or which falls below 
our de minimis level of £10,000 is charged to our revenue account in full in the year it occurs  

 
20.3 Measurement: assets are initially measured at cost including purchase price and any costs attributable to bringing the assets to the 

location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended. 
 
20.4 The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the acquisition does not have commercial 

substance i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash flows of the Council.  
 
20.5 Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

• Community and infrastructure assets – historical cost for those assets with no determinable finite useful life, or depreciated 
historical cost for those assets with a determinable finite useful life, otherwise a nominal £1 to acknowledge their existence; 

• Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment – depreciated historical cost; 

• Assets under construction – historical cost; 

• All other assets – current value, which is further refined as: 

▪ Operational Property, Plant and Equipment, non-specialised – existing use value, which represents the ‘value to business’ 
and disregards potential alternate uses and any other characteristics of the property that would cause its market value to 
differ; 
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

▪ Operational Property, Plant and Equipment, specialised – depreciated replacement cost (DRC). This involves an assessment 
of the gross replacement cost of a modern equivalent asset, less any allowances for relevant obsolescence factors, together 
with an assessment of the market value of a site suitable for the modern equivalent asset; 

▪ Non-operational Property, Plant and Equipment, fair value – being the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, with that transaction taking 
place in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset; 

▪ The Council uses appropriate valuation techniques for each circumstance, maximising the use of relevant known data and 
minimising the use of estimates or unknowns. 

20.6 Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are reviewed sufficiently to ensure that their carrying amount is not materially 
different from their fair value at the year end, but as a minimum every five years. Increases in valuation are matched by credits to the 
Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Where gains arise from the reversal of a revaluation loss previously charged to a 
service revenue account in the CIES it is credited back to that service revenue account up to the revaluation loss previously charged. 

20.7 Where decreases in value are identified they are accounted for as follows: 

• where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written 
down against that balance up to the amount of the accumulated gains; 

• where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down 
against the relevant service revenue account in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

20.8 The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains since 1st April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising 
before that date have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.  

20.9 Impairment: assets are assessed at each year-end to identify whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where 
indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, 
where this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment is recognised for the shortfall. 

20.10 Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for as follows:  

• where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written 
down against that balance up to the amount of the accumulated gains; 
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

• where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is written down 
against the relevant service revenue account in the CIES.  

20.11 Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line in the CIES up to the 
amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.  

20.12 Depreciation: depreciation is an accounting estimate used to spread the cost of an asset over its useful economic life. We charge 
depreciation on all PPE with the exception of assets without a determinable finite useful life (such as freehold land and certain 
community assets) and assets that are not yet available for use e.g. assets under construction. Where the Council does provide for 
depreciation, it does so on a straight-line basis; starting from the year following that in which the asset was bought or completed. 
Where an item of PPE has major components whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are 
depreciated separately. A component is classed as significant if its value is greater than 20% of the total value of the asset. 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current value depreciation charged on 
assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the 
Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.  

20.13 Disposals and Non–current Assets held for Sale: when it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than its continuing use it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale. The asset is 
revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there 
is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted to Other Operating Expenditure in the CIES. Gains in fair 
value are only recognised up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. 
Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. If the asset no longer meets the criteria to be classified as Asset Held for Sale 
i.e. the asset is no longer being actively marketed or there is no likelihood of disposal within twelve months, it is reclassified back to 
non-current assets and valued back to its carrying value before being classified as Assets Held for Sale. Assets that are abandoned 
or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.  

20.14 When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet is written off to Other 
Operating Expenditure in the CIES as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited to the same line in 
the CIES also as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts received for disposal in excess of the de-minimis level of £10,000 are 
categorised as capital receipts. The balance of receipts remains within the Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be used to 
fund new capital investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the Capital Financing Requirement). 
Receipts are appropriated to this Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the MIRS. The written-off value of disposals is not a  
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves.  

21.  Provisions and Contingent Liabilities 

21.1 We put amounts of money aside to meet future specific service payments. For future events to be reflected in provisions they need to 
meet three tests: 

• They must be the result of a past event; 

• A reliable estimate can me made; and 

• There must be a clear responsibility for the Council to make a future payment because of the past event. 

21.2 Provisions are charged to the appropriate service line in the CIES when we become aware that it is probable a payment will be 
required. The provision is based on the best estimate of the likely settlement. When payments are made they are charged to the 
provision already set up on the Balance Sheet. The Council maintains provisions for bad and doubtful debts in respect of council tax, 
business rates, housing benefit overpayments and sundry debtors. Provisions have been estimated in accordance with 
recommended practice and past experience. Provisions for bad and doubtful debts reduce the value of total debtors shown on the 
Balance Sheet.  

21.3 A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities 
also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance 
Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.  

22.  Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute (REFCUS) 

22.1 We undertake some capital spending during the year that does not result in the creation of an asset we own (e.g. housing grants). 
Any money we spend this way must be charged to the CIES but be funded from capital resources, and so, we make an adjustment in 
the MIRS equal to the expenditure to reverse this to the Capital Adjustment Account so there is no impact on the level of council tax. 
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Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

23.  Reserves 

23.1 We keep reserves to pay for spending on projects we will carry out in future years, to protect us against unexpected events and to 
manage the financial risk of uncertainties we face. Reserves include ‘earmarked reserves’ which we set aside for certain policy 
purposes and other ‘general reserves’ which represent resources set aside for purposes such as general events and managing our 
cash flow. 

23.2 Reserves are created by transferring amounts out of the General Fund balance. When expenditure is financed from a reserve, the 
expenditure itself is charged against the appropriate service line in the CIES. The reserve is then transferred back into the General 
Fund balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS)so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.   

23.3 Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for items such as non current assets, financial instruments, local 
taxation and retirement benefits and do not represent usable reserves for the Council. These are termed unusable reserves and 
more details are given in the relevant note to the Financial Statements.  

24.  VAT 

24.1 VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from HMRC. VAT receivable is excluded from 
income.  
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) records all of the Council’s revenue income and expenditure for the 

year. Expenditure represents a combination of statutory duties and discretionary spend focused on local priorities and needs. The CIPFA 

Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting regulates how expenditure and income relating to services is classified in the CIES. 

 

Gross 

Expenditure

Gross 

Income

Net 

Expenditure 

Gross 

Expenditure

Gross 

Income

Net 

Expenditure 

£000 £000 £000 Service Expenditure Analysis £000 £000 £000

35,795  (24,859) 10,936  Supporting People 33,157  27,686  5,471  

7,043  (6,230) 813  Strong Economy and Places 8,079  6,972  1,107  

7,298  (2,532) 4,766  Sustainable Environment 8,247  2,672  5,575  

10,744  (5,120) 5,624  Central and Support Costs 9,239  3,269  5,970  

60,880  (38,741) 22,139  Net Cost Of Services 58,722  40,599  18,123  

see note

2,736  Other Operating Expenditure 6  421  

(4,045) Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 7  (608) 

(24,350) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 8  (24,955) 

(3,520) (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 9  (7,019) 

(2,267) (Surplus)/Deficit on revaluation of non current assets (753) 

(3,611) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit (pension) liability 14  (39,578) 

0  Revaluation - available for sale financial assets 0  

(5,878) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (40,331) 

(9,398) Total Comprehensive (Income) and Expenditure (47,350) 

2021/22 2022/23

 
Note: figures in brackets represent income or a surplus. 
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Movement in Reserves Statement 
The Movement in Reserves Statement shows the movement in year on reserve balances held by the Council. 

General 

Fund 

Balance

Earmarked 

Reserves

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital Grants 

Unapplied

Total Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

31 MARCH 2023 see note

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2022 carried forward 13,435 71,663 6,772 3,903 95,773 51,908 147,681

Movement in reserves during 2022/23

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 7,019 0 0 0 7,019 40,331 47,350

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under 

Regulations

18
-6,265 0 1,556 1,760 -2,949 2,949 0

Net Increase/(Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 754 0 1,556 1,760 4,070 43,280 47,350

Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves
20

427 -427 0 0 0 0 0

Increase/(Decrease) in Reserves in Year 1,181 -427 1,556 1,760 4,070 43,280 47,350

Balance at 31 March 2023 carried forward 14,616 71,236 8,328 5,663 99,843 95,188 195,031

31 March 2022 see note

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2021 carried forward 10,917 72,672 9,302 3,343 96,234 42,049 138,283

Movement in reserves during 2021/22

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 3,520 0 0 0 3,520 5,878 9,398

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under 

Regulations

18
(2,011) 0 (2,530) 560 -3,981 3,981 0

Net Increase/(Decrease) before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves 1,509 0 (2,530) 560 -461 9,859 9,398

Transfers (to)/from Earmarked Reserves
20

1,009 -1,009 0 0 0 0 0

Increase/(Decrease) in Reserves in Year 2,518 -1,009 (2,530) 560 -461 9,859 9,398

Balance at 31 March 2022 carried forward 13,435 71,663 6,772 3,903 95,773 51,908 147,681
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Balance Sheet 
 

The Balance Sheet shows the value of assets and liabilities held by the Council. The net assets of the Council are matched by the 

reserves held by the Council. The reserves are presented within two categories, usable reserves and unusable reserves. Usable reserves 

may be used to provide services, subject to statutory limitations on their use and the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves for 

financial stability. Unusable reserves cannot be used to fund Council services. 

as at 31 March 2023

£000 £000 see note £000 £000

62,044 Property, Plant & Equipment 21 63,651 

49 Heritage Property 22 49 

33,981 Investment Property 23 32,632 JAYNE PICKERING

0 Intangible Assets 24 0 Deputy Chief Executive

100 Assets Held for Sale 25 50 S151 Officer

22,599 Long Term Investment 27 25,196 

1,008 Long Term Debtors 28 1,011 

119,781 Long Term Assets 122,589 

23,115 Short Term Investments 29 60,779 

12,874 Short Term Debtors 30 10,869 

58,399 Cash and Cash Equivalents 31 13,348 

9,127 Assets Held for Sale 25 9,260 

197 Inventories 32 163 

103,712 Current Assets 94,419 

(31,220) Short Term Creditors 33 (15,773)

(31,220) Current Liabilities (15,773)

(2,014) Provisions 34 (1,502)

(42,578) Pensions Liability 14 (4,702)

(44,592) Long Term Liabilities (6,204)

147,681 Net Assets 195,031 

(95,773) Usable Reserves 35 (99,843)

(51,908) Unusable Reserves 19 (95,188)

(147,681) Total Reserves (195,031)

as at 31 March 2022
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Cash Flow Statement 
 

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council during the reporting period. The Statement 

shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as relating to operating, investing, or 

financing activities. 

 

2021/2022 2022/2023

£000 see note £000

(3,520) Net surplus on the provision of services (7,019) 

(18,070) Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non cash movements 39 7,089  

986  
Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are 

investing and financing activities
39 4,613  

(20,604) Net cash flows from Operating Activities 4,683  

 

(9,250) Investing Activities 40 46,736  

(3,852) 
Financing Activities - adjustment due to council tax and business rates creditors as a billing 

authority
(6,368) 

(33,706) Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 45,051  

24,693  Cash and cash equivalents at the 1st April 31 58,399  

58,399  Cash and cash equivalents at the 31st March 31 13,348   
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Cash Flow Statement (continued) 
 

The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are 

funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. 

 

Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the 

Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by 

providers of capital (i.e. borrowing by the Council). 

 

Cash is represented by cash-in-hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable on notice of not more than 24 hours demand 

without material penalty. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in no more than three days or less and that are readily 

convertible to known amounts of cash with low risk of change in value. 
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Notes to the Accounts 
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Note 1 Accounting Standards Issued but not yet Adopted 
 

IFRS 16 Leases will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise most leases on their balance sheet as right-of-use assets with 

corresponding lease liabilities (there is recognition for low value and short-term leases). CIPFA/LASAAC have deferred implementation of 

IFRS16 for local government to 1 April 2024. 

 

 

 

 

 

Note 2 Significant Changes in Accounting Policies 
 

There have been no significant changes in accounting policies in 2022/23. 
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Note 3 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 

In applying its accounting policies, the Council has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty 
about future events. The critical judgements made in this Statement of Accounts are: 
 

• The Council re-values its property assets on a rolling programme. All revaluations are undertaken by a RICS qualified person with 
specialist advice as appropriate. Investment properties are revalued annually, and an impairment review is also undertaken annually. 
When assets are revalued their useful life is assessed. During 2022/23 a number of assets were valued and their revised values are 
incorporated in the accounts. 

 

• All assets with values of over £1m before depreciation have been deemed to be material and considered for componentisation, i.e. it 
has been considered whether any part of these assets should have a different useful life or method of depreciation. Each asset has 
been reviewed individually but generally they have been split into the following four components: 

Land 
Structure (including foundations) 
Roof 
Mechanical and electrical services (including boilers, heating systems, lifts) 

 

• All valuations are dated 31 March 2023 but for practical purposes the valuation exercise is started in January of each year. Any 
changes to valuations are reflected as necessary between January and March.  
 

• If material uncertainty has been stated, this is to advise the reader that a level of caution should be taken however we are satisfied that 
the valuations are as accurate as possible given the data available at the time of the valuations. The valuers have emphasised the 
valuation date. 

 

• The Council does not consider that it has any ‘embedded’ leases in its contracts with external suppliers, including the contract with 
FCC for provision of Refuse Collection and Recycling Services.  

 

• The provision for business rates appeals is based on latest Valuation Office and government information. This information has been 
independently verified and analysed using a model which takes into account local knowledge, national trends and outcomes of 
previous appeals. 
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Note 4 Assumptions Made about the Future and Other Major 

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 
 

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council about the future or that are 
otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, 
because some figures cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be different from the assumptions and estimates. 
 
The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023 for which there is a significant risk of an adjustment in the forthcoming 
financial year, are as follows: 

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

Property, plant and equipment Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions 

about the level of repairs and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to 

individual assets. Future economic conditions may mean that the Council will 

not be able to sustain its current spending on repairs and maintenance and 

this may bring into doubt the useful lives assigned to assets.

If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of 

the asset falls. It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge for buildings would 

increase by £244k for every year that useful lives had to be reduced.

Pensions liability Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of 

complex judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which 

salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates 

and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is 

engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about the assumptions to be 

applied. 

The effect on the net pension liability of changes in individual assumptions can be 

measured. For instance a 0.5% per annum increase in the discount rate assumption 

would result in a decrease in the net pension liability of £6.173m.

Bad debt provisions The Council has sundry debtor balances of £729k and Housing Benefit 

overpayment debtor balances of £982k. Provisions for bad or doubtful debts 

are made according to the age of the debt and, currently we provide for all 

debts over six months old. A provision of £1.218m is in place for sundry debtor 

and for housing benefit overpayment debts. 

If recoverability of debts below 6 months old falls, further provision would be required.

Business Rates appeals 

provision

The Council maintains a provision for outstanding business rates appeals. The 

provision has been calculated based on the current list of live appeals 

supported by a separate independent analysis as to the likely success rates and 

amounts payable. The total provision for 2022/23 attributable to Wychavon 

amounts to £1.502m (40% of £3.756m), a decrease from £2.013m in 2021/22.

If the value of business rates appeals likely to succeed increased by 10%, the provision 

would need to increase by a further £150k.
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Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

Property, plant and equipment Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on 

assumptions about the level of repairs and maintenance that will be 

incurred in relation to individual assets. Future economic conditions may 

mean that the Council will not be able to sustain its current spending on 

repairs and maintenance and this may bring into doubt the useful lives 

assigned to assets.

If the useful l ife of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount 

of the asset falls. It is estimated that the annual depreciation charge for buildings 

would increase by £241k for every year that useful l ives had to be reduced.

Pensions liability Estimation of the net l iability to pay pensions depends on a number of 

complex judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which 

salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality 

rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting 

actuaries is engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about the 

assumptions to be applied. 

The effect on the net pension liability of changes in individual assumptions can be 

measured. For instance a 0.1% per annum increase in the discount rate assumption 

would result in a decrease in the net pension liability of £1.844m.

Bad debt provisions The Council has sundry debtor balances of £1.258m and Housing Benefit 

overpayment debtor balances of £1.276m. Provisions for bad or doubtful 

debts are made according to the age of the debt and, in the case of Housing 

Benefit overpayments, whether the debtor is a current recipient of Housing 

Benefit or not. A provision of £1.193m is in place for sundry debtor and for 

housing benefit overpayment debts. 

If recoverability of these balances falls, the amount set aside as a provision for bad 

and doubtful debts would have to increase. For example, if recoverability falls by 10% 

an additional £253k would have to be set aside.

Business Rates appeals 

provision

The Council maintains a provision for outstanding business rates appeals. 

The provision has been calculated based on the current l ist of l ive appeals 

supported by a separate independent analysis as to the likely success rates 

and amounts payable. The total provision for 2021/22 attributable to 

Wychavon amounts to £2.013m (40% of £5.032m), an increase from £1.261m 

in 2020/21.

If the value of business rates appeals l ikely to succeed increased by 10%, the 

provision would need to increase by a further £201k.

  

Notes Supporting the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement 
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Note 5 Material items of Income and Expense 
 

 

A breakdown of net expenditure on services in 2022/23, identifying material items of income and expense during the year is shown below: 
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Priority - Supporting People Priority - Sustainable Environment

Total net spend of £-0.344m Total net spend of £4.907m

Net spending included: £m Net spending included: £m

Environmental Health 0.706         Street Cleaning 1.201      

Public Conveniences 0.370         Refuse Collection 1.237      

Customer Services 0.222         Recycling 1.216      

Community Programmes and Development 0.520         Grounds Maintenance 0.523      

Register of Electors/Elections 0.163         Parks, recreation grounds and open spaces 0.963      

Preventing Homelessness & other Housing needs (1.803)

Net income from Pershore Hospital/Doctors' Surgery (0.650)

Leisure facilities (0.705)

Grants to community groups, parishes and other groups 0.512         

(0.665) 5.140      

Priority - Strong Economy and Places Central & Support Costs

Total net spend of £-1.691m Total net spend of £6.229m

Net spending included: £m Net spending included: £m

Car Parking (1.164) Support Service costs (Legal/HR/Finance/Property/ 2.078

Net income from commercial properties including Waitrose stores (1.372) Committee & Support Services 0.181

Economic development and promotion 0.335         Information Technology 1.012

Tourism 0.219         Senior Management Team 0.507

Planning 0.862         Civic Centre 0.555

Licensing (0.262) Democratic Representation 0.427

Administration of Business Rates (0.075) Pension backfunding costs 1.015

Depots plus income from industrial sites in Droitwich and Evesham (0.040)

UK Shared Prosperity Fund (0.204)

(1.701) 5.775
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Note 6 Other Operating Expenditure 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note 7 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Note 8 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income
2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s

Council Tax income (9,009) (9,229)

Business Rates (6,135) (7,561)

Non Specific Revenue Grants & Contributions (6,909) (3,930)

Capital grants and contributions (2,117) (3,531)

Right to Buy Clawback (180) (704)

Total (24,350) (24,955)
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2021/22 2021/22

£000s £000s

Parish council precepts and grants 2,799   2,914   

Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 1   1   

Gains/(Losses) on the disposal of non current assets (64)  (2,494)  

Total 2,736   421   

2021/22 2022/23

£000s

Pensions net interest cost less administration expenses 945 1,190 

Interest receivable and similar income (760) (2,416)

Income and expenditure in relation to investment properties (3,175) (762)

and changes in their fair values - see Note 23

Changes to fair value of investments in Pooled Investment Funds (1,055) 1,380 

 - see Note 27.

Total (4,045) (608)
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Note 9 Expenditure and Funding Analysis 
 
The Expenditure and Funding Analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources (government grants, Council Tax 
and Business Rates) in comparison with those resources consumed or earned in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. 
It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the council’s priorities. Income and expenditure 
accounted for under generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  

Net Expenditure 

Chargeable to the General 

Fund Balance

Adjustments between the 

Funding and Accounting 

Basis

Net Expenditure in the 

Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement

Net Expenditure 

Chargeable to the General 

Fund Balance

Adjustments between the 

Funding and Accounting 

Basis

Net Expenditure in the 

Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

2,865 8,070 10,935 Supporting People (344) 5,815 5,471 

(1,577) 2,399 813 Strong Economy and Places (1,681) 2,788 1,107 

4,400 366 4,766 Sustainable Environment 4,908 667 5,575 

5,181 443 5,624 Central and Support Costs 6,229 (259) 5,970 

10,869 11,278 22,138 Net Cost of Services 9,112 9,011 18,123 

(12,379) (13,279) (25,658)

Other Income and 

Expenditure (9,866) (15,276) (25,142)

(1,510) (2,001) (3,520)

Surplus on the provision of 

Services (754) (6,265) (7,019)

83,589 

Opening General Fund 

Balance 85,098 

1,509 

Plus Surplus on General Fund 

Balance in Year 754 

85,098 

Closing General Fund 

Balance at 31 March 85,852 

2021/22 2022/23

 
A breakdown of the material items included in ‘Net Expenditure chargeable to the General Fund Balance’ column above is shown below: 
 

Depreciation and 

amortisation

Impairment of 

Assets

Revenues from 

external customers

Depreciation and 

amortisation

Impairment of 

Assets

Revenues from 

external customers

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

1,407                  (19) (1,171) Supporting People 1,540                    125 (1,353)

205                     (34) (5,378) Strong Economy and Places 114                       706 (6,133)

9                         243 (2,232) Sustainable Environment 6                           531 (2,400)

1,022                  0 (332) Central and Support Costs 266                       0 (428)

2,643                  190 (9,113) TOTAL 1,926                    1,362 (10,314)

2021/22 2022/23
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Note 9 Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued) 
 
Breakdown of Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2021/22: 

Adjustments from general Fund to arrive at the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement amounts

Adjustments for Capital 

Purposes (Note 9a)

Net change for Pensions 

Adjustments (Note 9b)

Other differences (Note 

9c) Total Adjustments

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Supporting People 7,149    292    629    8,070    

Strong Economy and Places 472    445    1,473    2,390    

Sustainable Environment 253    113    0    366    

Central and Support Costs 1,022    (579)   0    443    

Net Cost of Services 8,896    271    2,102    11,269    

Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis (6,930)   945    (7,295)   (13,280)   

Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit and 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Surplus or 

Deficit on the Provision of Services 1,966    1,216    (5,193)   (2,011)   

 

 
Breakdown of Adjustments between Funding and Accounting Basis 2022/23: 

Adjustments from General Fund to arrive at the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

amounts

Adjustments for Capital 

Purposes (Note 9a)

Net change for Pensions 

Adjustments (Note 9b)

Other differences 

(Note 9c) Total Adjustments

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Supporting People 4,773    397    645    5,815    

Strong Economy and Places 810    512    1,466    2,788    

Sustainable Environment 539    128    0    667    

Central and Support Costs 266    (525)   0    (259)   

Net Cost of Services 6,388    512    2,111    9,011    

Other income and expenditure from the Expenditure and 

Funding Analysis (8,348)   1,190    (8,118)   (15,276)   

Difference between General Fund surplus or deficit and 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (1,960)   1,702    (6,007)   (6,265)   
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Note 9 Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued) 
 
Adjustment for Capital Purposes (Note 9a)  
 
This column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the services line and for: 
 

• Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of assets and the amounts written off 
for those assets.  
 

• Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing, i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and 
other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure, as these are not chargeable under generally accepted 
accounting practices. 
 

• Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable under generally 
accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without conditions 
or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is 
credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or with conditions which were satisfied in the year. 

 
Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments (note 9b) 
 
Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee Benefits pension related expenditure and income: 
 

• For services, this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the Council as allowed by statute and the 
replacement with current service costs and past service costs. 

• For Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure - the net interest on the defined liability is charges to the CIES. 
 
 
Other Differences (note 9c) 
 
Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts 
payable/receivable to be recognised under statute: 
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Note 9 Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued) 
 

• For Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure, the “other differences” column recognises impairment of financial assets and 
adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts. 

 

• The charge under Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and expenditure represents the difference between what is chargeable 
under statutory regulations for Council Tax and Business Rates that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income 
recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference, as any difference will be brought 
forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the Collection Fund. 

 
 

Note 10 Officer Remuneration 
 

The remuneration paid to the Council’s senior employees is as follows: 

Post Title Salary 

Travel 

Expenses

Subsistence 

Expenses

Lease Car 

Alternative

Pension 

Contributions Total

£ £ £ £ £ £

Joint Chief Executive 2022/23 139,544.04 289.35 36.95 4,599.96 25,536.57 170,006.87

2021/22 134,279.10 44.10 0.00 4,599.96 24,573.04 163,496.20

Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 

Officer 2022/23 91,760.98 0.00 0.00 4,599.96 16,792.27 113,153.21

2021/22 88,137.39 0.00 0.00 4,599.96 16,129.13 108,866.48

Director of Economy and Environment 2022/23 88,037.81 0.00 0.00 3,399.96 16,110.93 107,548.70

2021/22 25,519.58 0.00 0.00 1,023.64 4,670.08 31,213.30

Director of Communities and Housing 2022/23 86,301.27 0.00 0.00 3,399.96 15,793.11 105,494.34

2021/22 26,643.63 0.00 0.00 1,087.62 4,875.79 32,607.04
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Note 10 Officer Remuneration (continued) 
 
Notes: 

- The Joint Chief Executive, the Director of Communities & Housing and the Director of Economy and Environment are joint posts 
working for both Wychavon District Council and Malvern Hills District Council. They are formally employed by Wychavon, and 
Malvern Hills District Council is recharged 43.5% of their remuneration.  

- The Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer is part of the Joint Senior Management Team with Malvern Hills District 
Council but funded wholly by Wychavon District Council 

- The Director of Planning & Infrastructure is a joint post with Malvern Hills District Council. The individual is employed by Malvern 
Hills District Council and Wychavon is recharged 56.5% of their remuneration.  

- The Director of Legal & Governance is a joint post with Malvern Hills District Council. The individual is employed by Malvern Hills 
District Council and Wychavon is recharged 56% of their remuneration.  

- The Director of Economy and Environment commenced the role on the 13th December 2021.  
- The Director of Communities and Housing commenced the role on the 6th December 2021. 

 
The Authority’s other employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions) were 
paid the following amounts. 

2021/22 2022/23

Remuneration Band

Number of 

Employees

Number of 

Employees

£50,000 - £54,999 4 4

£55,000 - £59,999 1 2

£60,000 - £64,999 4 3
 

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band are set out in the table below: 

Exit package cost band (including special payments)

2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23

£0 - £20,000 1 2 16,271 6,589

£20,001 - £40,000 0 0 0 0

£40,000 - £60,000 0 0 0 0

Total cost included in bandings and in the CIES 16,271 6,589

Total number of exit packages Total cost of exit packages in each band
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Note 10 Officer Remuneration (continued) 
 
Trade Union Facility Time:  
Wychavon District Council recognises UNISON for collective bargaining purposes. Facility time details for the period 1 April 2022 to 31 
March 2023 were as follows: 

 
 

Number of employees who were relevant union officials in the relevant period 2

Full time equivalent employee number 1.6

Percentage of working hours spent on facility time:

0% of working hours 0

1% to 50% of working hours 2

51% to 99% of working hours 0

100% of working hours 0

Total pay bill £11,000,314

Total cost of facility time £810

Percentage of pay spent on facility time 0.01%

Hours spent on paid facility time 51

Hours spent on paid trade union activities 21

Percentage of hours spent on paid facility time 0%

 
 

Note 11 Members’ Allowances 

 
The Council paid the following amounts to members of the Council during the year: 

2021/22 2022/23

Total £312,669 £324,502
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Note 12 External Audit Costs 

 
The Council has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts: 

 

2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s

Fees payable to Ernst & Young LLP with regard to external 

audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for the 

year. 2021/22 includes The Redmond Review Local Audit 

Fees grant of £17,237. 17  59  

Fees payable in respect to KMPG during the year for housing 

benefit subsidy audit (estimate for 21/22) 10  20  

Fees payable to Ernst & Young LLP during the year for 

housing benefit 40+ audit 10  18  

Total 37  97  
 

 
 

The external auditors Ernst & Young LLP were appointed to audit the Council’s accounts and provide a value for money opinion with effect 
from the 2015/16 financial year. Following a tender process carried out by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA), on behalf of 
the Council, the same auditors have been appointed for a five-year period with effect from 2018/19. KMPG have carried out the Housing 
Benefit Subsidy audit since 2021/22. 
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Note 13 Grant Income 

 
The Council credited the following grants, contributions and donations to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 
2022/2023: 

 

2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Government Grants Other Grants

Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Income Credited to Services

MHCLG - Covid-19 Emergency Grant Funding (608) 0 Sport England - National Leisure Recovery Fund 0 (156)

MHCLG - New Homes Bonus (3,174) (2,556) Homes for Ukraine Grant Funding 0 (2,538)

MHCLG - NNDR Section 31 Grants (5,674) (4,737) Household Support Fund 0 (350)

MHCLG - Housing Renewal Grants - Capital - DFGs (1,252) 0 Other Grants (624) (79)

Football Foundation - Evesham 3G Pitch (254) (205) Total (624) (3,123)

Disabled Facilities Grant 0 (1,252)

Local Authority Housing Fund 0 (778) Contributions

UK Shared Prosperity Fund 0 (198) Credited to Taxation and Non Specific Income

Changing Places Grant 0 (66) Section 106 Contributions (1,600) (58)

Heritage Lottery Fund 0 (488) Voluntary Right to Buy Clawback (180) (704)

MHCLG - Sales, Fees & Charges Compensation Grant (227) 0 Community Infrastructure Levy (585) (551)

MHCLG - Local Taxation Income Guarantee Scheme - NNDR (54) 0 Other (25) 0 

MHCLG - Lower Tier Support Grant (1,107) (1,053) Total (2,390) (1,313)

Other (192) (263)

Total (12,542) (11,596) Credited to Services

Malvern Hills District Council - Contributions to Shared Services (2,318) (2,251)

Credited to Services Worcester City Council - Contributions to Shared Services (1,885) (1,687)

DWP - Housing Benefits Subsidy (19,608) (18,890) Bromsgrove DC - Contribution to Parking Services (243) (257)

DWP - Housing Benefits Administration (253) (269) Other (2,354) (2,210)

DLUHC - Council Tax Administration Grant 0 (119) Total  (6,800) (6,405)

DLUHC - UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) 0 (308)

DHSC - Test & Trace Suuport Payment 0 (145)

DCLG - Rebate Grant - Non-Discretionary 0 (5,923)

DCLG - CT Rebate Grant - Discretionary 0 (270)

DLUHC - New Burdens Energy Rebate 0 (109)

MHCLG - Flexible Homelessness Support Grant (354) (363)

BEIS - Business Grants New Burdens (339) (50)

BEIS - Additional Restrictions Grant (1,743) 0 

Other (1,565) 3,719 

Total (23,862) (22,727)
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Note 14 Pension Costs 
 

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its staff, the Council offers retirement benefits.  Although these benefits will not 
actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment to make payments and to disclose them at the time that 
employees earn their future entitlement. 
 
The council participates in one defined benefit pension scheme, the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered by 
Worcestershire County Council.  This is a funded, defined benefit, career average revalued earnings (CARE) scheme. This means that the 
Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended to balance the pension liabilities with investment 
assets. The pension scheme is operated under the regulatory framework for the Local Government Pension Scheme and the governance 
of the scheme is the responsibility of the Pensions Committee of Worcestershire County Council. Policy is determined in accordance with 
the Pensions Fund Regulations.   
 
The principal risks to the authority of the scheme are the longevity assumptions, statutory changes to the scheme, structural changes to 
the scheme (i.e. large-scale withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields and the performance of the equity 
investments held by the scheme.  These are mitigated to a certain extent by the statutory requirements to charge to the General Fund the 
amounts required by statute as described in the accounting policies note and below.  
 
The CIES and Balance Sheet show a material variation between the years 2021/22 and 2022/23 in pension liability which is a 
remeasurement gain due to changes in financial assumptions by the actuary: an increase in corporate bond yields and a decrease in CPI 
inflation over the year. In addition, there has been a gain from a change in demographic assumptions mostly relating to mortality 
assumptions where life expectancy improvements have slowed compared to prior analysis. 
 
 
Transactions relating to post-employment benefits 
 
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services when they are earned by employees, rather than 
when benefits are eventually paid as pensions. However, the charge we are required to make against council tax is based on the cash 
payable in the year, so the real cost of post employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General Fund via the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the 
General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserves Statement during the year: 
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Note 14 Pension Costs (continued) 

Local 

Government 

Pension 

Scheme 

Local 

Government 

Pension 

Scheme

Unfunded 

Discretionary 

Benefits

Unfunded 

Discretionary 

Benefits Total Total

2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

COMPREHENSIVE STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE

Cost of services:

Service cost comprising:

 - current service cost (2,623) (3,047) 0 0 (2,623) (3,047)

 - past service cost 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 - loss from settlements & curtailments 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure

 - net interest expense (872) (1,102) (47) (58) (919) (1,160)

- administration (26) (30) 0 0 (26) (30)

Total Post-Employment Benefit Charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services (3,521) (4,179) (47) (58) (3,568) (4,237)

Other Post-employment Benefits Charged to the Comprehensive Statement of Income & 

Expenditure

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit (pension) liability comprising:

 - Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net interest expense) 2,924 687 0 0 2,924 687 

 - Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in financial assumptions 83 45,664 0 540 83 46,204 

 - Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in demographic assumptions 881 1,867 16 32 897 1,899 

 - Actuarial gains and losses arising on changes in experience (287) (9,148) (6) (64) (293) (9,212)

Total remeasurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 3,601 39,070 10 508 3,611 39,578 

Cost of Business Combination (net) 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Post-employment Benefits Charged to the Comprehensive Statement of Income & 

Expenditure 80 34,891 (37) 450 43 35,341 

Movement in Reserves Statement

 - Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Servies for post-

employment benefits in accordance with the Code (3,521) (4,179) (47) (58) (3,568) (4,237)

Actual Amount Charged Against the General Fund Balance for Pensions in the Year

 - Employer's contributions payable to the scheme 2,171 2,357 181 178 2,352 2,535 

- Retirement benefits payable to pensioners 2,901 2,933 181 178 3,082 3,111 
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Note 14 Pension Costs (continued) 
 
Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet 
 
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the authority’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows: 

 

Local Government 

Pension Scheme

Local Government 

Pension Scheme

Unfunded 

Discretionary 

Benefits

Unfunded 

Discretionary 

Benefits Total Total

2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Present value of the defined benefit obligation (liability) 116,336      81,788      2,200      1,572      118,536      83,360      

Fair value of plan assets (75,958)     (78,658)     0      0      (75,958)     (78,658)     

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 40,378      3,130      2,200      1,572      42,578      4,702      
 

 
Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme Assets 

Local 

Government 

Pension 

Scheme

Local 

Government 

Pension 

Scheme

Unfunded 

Discretionary 

Benefits

Unfunded 

Discretionary 

Benefits Total Total

2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Opening balance at 1 April 71,840        75,958        0        0        71,840        75,958        

Interest income 1,505        2,123        0        0        1,505        2,123        

Remeasurement gain/(loss):

- The return on plan assets, excluding the amount included in the net interest expense 2,924        687        0        0        2,924        687        

Administration expenses (26)       (30)       0        0        (26)       (30)       

Employer contributions 2,171        2,357        181        178        2,352        2,535        

Employee contributions 445        496        0        0        445        496        

Benefits paid (2,901)       (2,933)       (181)       (178)       (3,082)       (3,111)       

Other - Business combinations 0        0        0        0        0        0        

Closing balance at 31 March 75,958        78,658        0        0        75,958        78,658        
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Note 14 Pension Costs (continued) 
 

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities 
 

Local Government 

Pension Scheme

Local Government 

Pension Scheme

Unfunded 

Discretionary 

Benefits

Unfunded 

Discretionary 

Benefits Total Total

2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Opening balance as at 1 April 114,469        116,336        2,344        2,200        116,813        118,536        

Current service cost 2,623        3,047        0        0        2,623        3,047        

Interest cost 2,377        3,225        47        58        2,424        3,283        

Employees' contributions 445        496        0        0        445        496        

Past service cost (gain) 0        0        0        0        0        0        

Remeasurement (gains) and losses:

- Experience (gain)/loss 287        9,148        6        64        293        9,212        

-Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions (881)       (1,867)       (16)       (32)       (897)       (1,899)       

-Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (83)       (45,664)       0        (540)       (83)       (46,204)       

Losses on curtailment 0        0        0        0        0        0        

Liabilities extinguished on settlements 0        0        0        0        0        0        

Benefits paid (2,901)       (2,933)       (181)       (178)       (3,082)       (3,111)       

Liabilities assumed on business combinations 0        0        0        0        0        0        

Closing balance as at 31 March 116,336        81,788        2,200        1,572        118,536        83,360        
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Note 14 Pension Costs (continued) 
 
Local Government Pension scheme assets comprised: 

 

Fair Value of Scheme Assets Fair Value of Scheme Assets

2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Cash and cash equivalents 19   1,346   Property:

Equity Instruments:  - European Property Funds 0   

 - UK quoted 87   81    - UK Property Debt 529   843   

 - Overseas quoted 18,594   17,534    - Overseas property Debt 352   562   

 - PIV UK Managed Funds 10,465   9,868    - UK Property Funds 3,347   5,338   

 - PIV UK Managed Funds (overseas equities) 30,356   28,626    - Overseas REITs 0   0   

 - PIV Overseas Managed Funds 605   571   Sub-total Property 4,228   6,743   

Sub-total Equity Instruments 60,107   56,680   

Alternatives:

Bonds:  - UK Infrastructure 3,578   4,562   

 - Other Bonds 0   0    - European Infrastructure 2,385   3,042   

 - UK Government Fixed 1,230   1,083    - US Infrastructure 1,988   2,535   

 - LGPS Central Global Pooled Funds 1,071   943    - UK Stock Options 318   406   

Sub-total Bonds 2,301   2,026    - Overseas Stock Options (159)   (203)   

 - Corporate Private Debt 1,193   1,521   

Sub-total Alternatives 9,303   11,863   

Total Assets 75,958   78,658    
 

All scheme assets have quoted prices in active markets. 
 
Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities  
 
Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable 
in future years dependent on assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc. Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and 
unfunded discretionary benefits liabilities have been estimated by Mercer Limited, an independent firm of actuaries. The last full valuation of 
the scheme was at 31 March 2022. 
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Note 14 Pension Costs (continued) 
 
The principal assumptions used by the actuary have been:   

2021/22 2022/23

Mortality assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

 - Male 22.6 years  22.0 years 

 - Female 25.0 years 24.2 years

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

 - Male 24.1 years 23.3 years

 - Female 27.0 years 26.1 years

Other:

Rate of inflation (CPI) 3.4% 2.7%

Rate of increase in salaries 4.9% 4.2%

Rate of increase in pensions 3.5% 2.8%

Rate of discounting scheme liabilities 2.8% 4.8%

 
 
 

The estimation of the defined benefit pension obligation (pension liability) is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set out in the table 
above.  The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the reasonable possible changes of the assumptions occurring 
at the end of the reporting period and assumes for each change that the assumption being analysed changes, while all the other 
assumptions remain constant.  The assumptions in longevity, for example, assume that life expectancy increases or decreases for men 
and women.  In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be interrelated.  The estimations in the 
sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for the scheme, i.e. on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method.   
 
The sensitivity analysis which considers the impact on an increase/decrease in investment returns does not impact on the defined benefit 
obligation (pension liability), but on the plan assets. However, movement on the level of plan assets will impact on the pension fund deficit, 
so it has been included for information. 
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Note 14 Pension Costs (continued) 
 

Impact on the Defined 

Benefit Obligations in the 

Scheme Impact on Plan Assets

£000s £000s

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year) 1,708 0

* increase in longevity increases liability

Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.25%) 3,324 0

* increase in inflation increases liability

Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.25%) 443 0

* increase in salaries increases liability

Rate of discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 0.5%) 6,173 0

* increase in discount decreases liability

Change in 2020/21 investment returns (increase or decrease by 1%) 0 783

* increase in investment returns increases asset  
 
 
Impact on the Council’s Cash Flows 
 
The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers’ contributions at as constant a rate as possible.  The County Council has agreed a 
strategy with the scheme’s actuary to achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 15 years from the last pension valuation on 31 March 
2022.  Funding levels are monitored on an annual basis. 
 

The Council anticipates it will pay £1.888m expected contributions to the scheme in 2023/24. 
 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for scheme members is 16 years for 2022/23. 
 

Statutory arrangements for funding the pension fund deficit mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy, as the deficit will 
be made good either through improved fund performance or increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees, as 
assessed by the scheme actuary. 
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Note 14 Pension Costs (continued) 
 
Pensions Liability Relating to the Worcestershire Shared Service Joint Committee 
 
Wychavon’s Regulatory Services (Environmental Health and Licensing) functions are carried out by the Worcestershire Shared Services 
Partnership arrangement between various Worcestershire Authorities. This shared service is hosted by Bromsgrove District Council. The 
income and expenditure incurred by the shared service is accounted for in the host authority’s accounts. The assets and liabilities of the 
pension scheme are the joint responsibility of the partnership and are accounted for in full in the host authority’s accounts.  
The pension assets and liabilities for the shared services that are attributable to Wychavon at 31 March 2022 are as follows: 

 

Regulatory 

Services

Regulatory 

Services

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£000s £000s

Present Value of Liabilities  (9,375)       (6,383)      

Fair Value of Assets 6,431       6,467       

Surplus or (Deficit) in the Scheme  (2,944)      84       

 
 

Note 15 Revenue from Contracts with Service Recipients 

 
The following amounts are included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account for Contracts with Service Recipients: 

 

2021/22

Revenue from Contracts with Service 

Recipients 2022/23

£000s £000s

2,231 Sustainable Environment 2,397

4,224 Strong Economy and Places 4,662

386 Supporting People 547

300 Central and support costs 383

7,141 7,989  
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Note 15 Revenue from Contracts with Service Recipients (continued) 
 

All material income from the Councils contracts with Service Recipients is accounted for as received so there are no material items on the 
balance sheet relating to Contracts with Service Recipients. 
 
In addition, there is no further revenue expected to be recognised in future related to performance obligations unsatisfied or potentially 
satisfied at the year end.  

 
 

Note 16 Expenditure on Publicity 

 
Councils are required to identify the cost of publicity during the year which has been included in the Income and Expenditure Account. 
 
Publicity is defined as “any communication, in whatever form, addressed to the public at large or to a section of the public”. The figures 
shown below are inclusive of recruitment advertising. 

 

2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s

Total spend on publicity 314 233

 
The decreased spend for 2022/23 compared to 2021/22 is mainly due to the 2021/22 campaign, financed from central government, to help 
the local economy recover post Covid-19 restrictions. 

 
 

Note 17 Building Control 
 

Councils are required to publish their costs of providing a Building Control service and the income generated. For the chargeable service, 
income is not expected to exceed expenditure when averaged out over a three-year rolling period.  
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Note 17 Building Control (continued) 
 

 

Non-chargeable Chargeable

2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Expenditure 0 0 205 211 

Income 0 0 (257) (218)

Net cost of service 0 0 (52) (7)  
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Notes Supporting the Movement in Reserves Statement 
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Note 18 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis 
under Regulations 

 
This note details the adjustments made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the Council in the year in 
accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to 
meet future capital and revenue expenditure. 

Usable Reserves

2021/2022

General Fund 

Balance

Capital Receipts 

Reserve

Capital Grants 

Unapplied

Movements in 

Unusable Reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Changes for depreciation and impairment of non current assets 2,833  0  0  (2,833) 

Movement in the fair value of Investment properties (1,126) 0  0  1,126  

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 6,062  0  0  (6,062) 

Non current assets written off on disposal 922  (922) 

Minimum Revenue Provision (200) 0  0  200  

Kickstart Loan movement in value (6) 0  0  6  

Application of grants to capital financing (399) 20  0  379  

8,086  20  0  (8,106) 

Insertion of items not debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Capital expenditure charged against the general fund 0  0  0  0  

0  0  0  0  

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the CIES (1,717) 0  1,717  0  

Revenue contribution to capital (3,238) 0  0  3,238  

Application of grants to capital financing

Capital contribution to revenue

Application of grants to capital financing 0  0  (1,157) 1,157  

(4,955) 0  560  4,395  

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of sale proceeds as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES (986) 986  0  0  

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 1  0  0  (1) 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 0  (4,365) 0  4,365  

Capital expenditure written back to Capital Receipts 0  0  0  0  

Right to Buy clawback (180) 180  0  0  

Repayment of loan principal 0  2,158  0  (2,158) 

Loans advanced 0  (1,509) 0  1,509  

(1,165) (2,550) 0  3,715  

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the CIES 3,568  0  0  (3,568) 

Employers' pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year (2,352) 0  0  2,352  

1,216  0  0  (1,216) 

Adjustments involving Pooled Investment Adjustments Account

Adjustment to fair value of pooled investments in accordance with statutory requirements (1,056) 0  0  1,056  

(1,056) 0  0  1,056  

Adjustments involving the Financial Instrument Adjustments Account

Amount by which finance costs charged to the  CIES are different from finance costs chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements 59  0  0  (59) 

59  0  0  (59) 

Adjustments involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account

Amount by which Council Tax and NNDR credited to the CIES is different from Council Tax and NNDR income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements
(4,196) 0  0  4,196  

Total Adjustments (2,011) (2,530) 560  3,981  
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Note 18 Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding basis under Regulations (Continued)  

2022/2023

General Fund 

Balance

Capital Receipts 

Reserve

Capital Grants 

Unapplied

Movements in 

Unusable Reserves

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account

Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

Changes for depreciation and impairment of non current assets 3,288  0  0  (3,288) 

Movement in the fair value of Investment properties 1,348  0  0  (1,348) 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 3,100  0  0  (3,100) 

Non current assets written off on disposal 2,120  0  0  (2,120) 

Minimum Revenue Provision (200) 0  0  200  

Kickstart Loan movement in value (4) 0  0  4  

Capital Grants and Contributions Applied (757) 0  0  757  

8,895  0  0  (8,895) 

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account

Capital grants and contributions unapplied credited to the CIES (2,773) 0  2,773  0  

Revenue contribution to capital (2,765) 0  0  2,765  

Grants credited to Capital Receipts 0  25  (25) 0  

Application of grants to capital financing 0  0  (988) 988  

(5,538) 25  1,760  3,753  

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of sale proceeds as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the CIES (4,613) 4,613  0  0  

Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 1  0  0  (1) 

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 0  (3,395) 0  3,395  

Capital expenditure written back to Capital Receipts 0  (1,539) 0  1,539  

Right to Buy clawback (704) 704  0  0  

Repayment of loan principal 0  1,148  0  (1,148) 

(5,316) 1,531  0  3,785  

Adjustments involving the Pensions Reserve

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the CIES 4,236  0  0  (4,236) 

Employers' pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in the year (2,534) 0  0  2,534  

1,702  0  0  (1,702) 

Adjustments involving the Available for Sale Financial Asset Reserve

Adjustment for valuation 1,379  (1,379) 

1,379  0  0  (1,379) 

Adjustments involving the Financial Instrument Adjustments Account

Amount by which finance costs charged to the  CIES are different from finance costs chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory requirements 4  0  0  (4) 

4  0  0  (4) 

Adjustments involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account

Amount by which Council Tax and NNDR credited to the CIES is different from Council Tax and NNDR income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory 

requirements
(7,391) 0  0  7,391  

Total Adjustments (6,265) 1,556  1,760  2,949  
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Note 19 Unusable Reserves 

 

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£000s £000s

Revaluation Reserve 38,681    36,706    

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 911    908    

Capital Adjustment Account 58,504    59,876    

Pensions Reserve (42,578)   (4,703)   

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 86    85    

Pooled Investment Funds Adj. Account 844    (535)   

Collection Fund Adjustment Account (4,540)   2,851    

TOTAL UNUSABLE RESERVES 51,908    95,188     
 

Revaluation Reserve 
 
The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its property, plant and equipment. 
The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are: 
 

• revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost, 

• used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or 

• disposed of and the gains are realised 
 

The Reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains 
arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 

2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April (38,547) (38,681) 

Upward revaluation of assets (5,985) (5,481) 

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment 3,717  4,728  

Amounts written out to the Capital Adjustment Account 2,042  1,330  

Accumulated gains on assets sold or scrapped 92  1,398  

Balance at 31 March (38,681) (36,706) 
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Note 19 Unusable Reserves (continued) 
 

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 
 
The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for 
income and expenses relating to certain financial instruments and for bearing losses or benefiting from gains per statutory provisions.  
 
The account is used to manage interest free loans made to Droitwich Boxing Club in 2013/14, Evesham Abbey Trust in 2021/22 and Evesham 
United Football Club in 2011/12, which are deemed to be soft loans. 
 
A loss is recorded in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the present value of the interest forgone over the life of the 
loan. Over time, the expense is posted back to the General Fund Balance in accordance with statutory arrangements for spreading the 
burden on council tax and managed by a transfer to the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account also recognises lease incentives resulting from rent free periods. The CIPFA Code states 
that these incentives should be recognised over the term of the lease. Details of these incentives are recorded at Note 38. 
 
As stated above, over time the expense is posted back to the General Fund Balance in accordance with statutory arrangements. 
 

2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 971     912     

Soft loans (5)   (4)   
Deferred rental income (54)   0     

Balance at 31 March 912     908      
 

Capital Adjustment Account 
 

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for the consumption 
of non-current assets, for financing the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions. The Account is 
debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to convert fair values to  
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Note 19 Unusable Reserves (continued) 
 
an historical cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction 
and enhancement. 
 
The account contains accumulated gains and losses on investment properties and gains recognised on donated assets that have yet to be 
consumed by the Council. The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on property, plant and equipment before 1 April 2007, 
the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains. Note 18 provides details of the source of all transactions posted to 
the Account, apart from those involving the Revaluation Reserve.   

2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s

Balance as at 1 April (56,364) (58,504) 

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Charge for the depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 2,833  3,288  

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 6,062  3,100  

Changes to the value of outstanding loans (1,509) (4) 

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account 830  2,119  

(48,148) (50,001) 

Adjusting amounts written out of the Revaluation Reserve (2,042) (2,728) 

Net amount written out of the cost of non-current assets consumed in the year (50,190) (52,729) 

Capital financing applied in the year:

Use of the Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure (4,365) (4,934) 

Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital financing (3,364) (2,766) 

Application of grants to capital financing from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account (1,412) (1,744) 

(59,331) (62,173) 

Capital expenditure charged against General Fund (200) (200) 

Repayment of loan principal 2,153  1,149  

Movements in the market value of Investment Properties debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (1,126) 1,348  

Balance as at 31 March (58,504) (59,876)  
 
Pensions Reserve 
 
The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits 
and for funding benefits in accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised 
to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs. However, statutory 
arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes employer’s contributions to pension funds or eventually pays 
any pensions for which it is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a substantial shortfall in the 
benefits earned by the past and current employees and the resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements 
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Note 19 Unusable Reserves (continued) 
 
will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 
 

2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s

Balance as at 1 April (44,973) (42,578) 

Remeasurement gains or losses on pensions assets and liabilities as per the actuary 3,611  39,578  

Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited to the Surplus or Deficit 

on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(3,568) (4,237) 

Employer's pension contributions and  direct payments to pensioner's payable in the year 2,352  2,534  

Asset opening balance adjustment 0  0  

Balance at 31 March (42,578) (4,703)  
 
 

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 
 
The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-current assets but for which cash settlement 
has yet to take place. Under statutory arrangements, the Council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital 
expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to 
the Capital Receipts Reserve. 

 

2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s

Balance as at 1 April (87)   (86)   

Transfer to the Capital Receipts Reserve upon receipt of cash 1    1    

Balance as at 31 March (86)   (85)   
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Note 19 Unusable Reserves (continued) 

 

Pooled Investment Funds Adjustment Account 

The Pooled Investment Funds Adjustments Account holds the difference on the Council’s investments in the Local Authorities Property 
Fund and Diversified Income Fund, to show it at market value rather than at cost. 

 

2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s

Balance as at 1 April (211) 844 

Notional gain/(loss) on investment 1,055 (1,379)

Balance as at 31 March 844 (535)  
 

 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account 
 
The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the recognition of Council Tax and Business Rates income 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as it falls due from council taxpayers and business ratepayers, compared with 
the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General Fund from the Collection Fund.  

2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s

Balance as at 1 April (8,736)  (4,540)  

Amount by which Council Tax income credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement is 

different from Council Tax income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements
130   (11)  

Amount by which Business Rate income credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement is 

different from Business Rate income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements
4,066   7,402   

Balance as at 31 March (4,540)  2,851    
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Note 20 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 

 
This note shows the amounts set aside from the General Fund balances in earmarked reserves, to provide financing for future expenditure 
plans and the amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund expenditure in 2022/23. 

Balance at Transfers Receipts Payments Total Balance at

1 April 2022 in year in year in year in year 31 March 2023

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Developer s106 Cont-WDC Projects (14,317)    120     (133)    2,442     2,429     (11,888)    

Developer s106 Cont-Non WDC (4,901)    0     (640)    455     (185)    (5,086)    

Developer s106 Cont-WDC Non Projects (1,735)    (120)    0     0     (120)    (1,855)    

Regeneration Projects 0     (22,003)    0     0     (22,003)    (22,003)    

New Homes Bonus (16,876)    7,795     (2,556)    1,144     6,383     (10,493)    

Evesham Town Centre Development (8,400)    0     0     200     200     (8,200)    

Homes for Ukraine 0     0     (2,616)    391     (2,225)    (2,225)    

Business Rates Equalisation (10,180)    6,996     0     1,016     8,012     (2,168)    

Alternative Fuel & Energy Bill Support Schemes 0     0     (1,304)    0     (1,304)    (1,304)    

Business Covid-19 (4,480)    3,480     0     0     3,480     (1,000)    

Homelessness Prevention Grant (610)    0     (430)    148     (282)    (892)    

CCLA Pooled Funds 0     (500)    (35)    0     (535)    (535)    

Car Park Maintenance Reserve 0     (410)    0     0     (410)    (410)    

Invest To Save (351)    43     0     22     65     (286)    

UK Shared Prosperity Fund 0     0     (204)    0     (204)    (204)    

COVID19 (2,232)    2,928     (1,106)    226     2,048     (184)    

Community Housing Fund (174)    0     0     1     1     (173)    

WDC Energy Rebate Grants 0     0     (172)    0     (172)    (172)    

Abbey Gates Riverside Rent (86)    0     (85)    0     (85)    (171)    

Community Grants (237)    (147)    0     215     68     (169)    

Economic Development (1,067)    873     0     36     909     (158)    

Pershore Hospital Maintenance (151)    0     0     0     0     (151)    

Neighbourhood Planning (130)    0     (40)    35     (5)    (135)    

Sports Development (135)    20     0     0     20     (115)    

Reduction of Household Black Bin Waste (88)    0     (24)    0     (24)    (112)    

Pensions Risk (300)    300     0     0     300     0     

Wychavon Leisure Support (206)    206     0     0     206     0     

Treasury Investments (Brexit & Markets) (200)    200     0     0     200     0     

Other Miscellaneous Reserves (45 reserves) (1,230)    219     (698)    562     83     (1,147)    

Subtotal (68,086)    0     (10,043)    6,893     (3,150)    (71,236)    

Collection Fund (timing difference) (3,577)    0     0     3,577     3,577     0     

TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES (71,663)    0     (10,043)    10,470     427     (71,236)     
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Note 20 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves (continued) 
 
The reserves have been set up for the following purposes: 
Reserve Purpose
Developer s106 Contributions - WDC projects To fund future Wychavon projects of the type stated within the various individual agreements.
Developer s106 Contributions - non-WDC projects To fund future non Wychavon projects of the type stated within the various individual agreements.
Developer s106 Contributions - WDC non projects To fund the maintenance of adopted open spaces.
Regeneration To fund regeneration projects within the district.
New Homes Bonus To fund the future costs of the various projects as per the agreed New Homes Bonus protocol.
Evesham Town Centre Development To fund the project from revenue over the life of the asset created.
Homes for Ukraine A government grant to support the housing of our Ukrainian guests.

Business Rates Equalisation
To set aside the Business Rates growth achieved in the Business rates Retention Scheme for use in offsetting possible 

deficits in future years.

Alternative Fuel & Energy Bill Support Schemes Government grants to help offset the cost of energy bills.

Business rates Covid-19 To fund the effects on Business rates of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Homelessness Prevention Grant To set aside funds received from DLUHC for future projects.
CCLA Pooled Funds To help offset any potential future losses.
Car Park Maintenance Reserve To finance future maintenance of the Council's car parks.
Invest to Save To fund equipment and projects that in the longer term will result in savings to the Council.
UK Shared Prosperity Fund A Government grant to fund various initiatives across the district.
Covid-19 To help fund the recovery from the Covid-19 pandemic.
Community Housing Fund A government grant to support community-led housing developments.
WDC Energy Rebate Grants A Government grant to help offset the cost of energy bills.
Abbey Gates - Riverside Rent Set aside to finance a potential repayment of rents.
Community Grants To fund approved grant applications from local groups and organisations for projects.
Economic Development To fund future initiatives to help the local economy.
Pershore Hospital Maintenance To fund the future replacement of major plant and equipment.
Neighbourhood Planning To set aside funds received from MHCLG for later stages of the Plan setting process.
Sports Development To fund sports development projects
Reduction of Household Black Bin Waste To fund a Council Promise to reduce household black bin waste.
Pensions Risk To help fund any potential future losses.
Wychavon Leisure Support To provide support during and immediately after the Covid-19 pandemic
Treasury Investments (Bexit & Markets) To help fund any potential future losses.

Other Miscellaneous Reserves

Includes the following:                                                                                                                                                                

Youth Bus, Homelessness Prevention, Rough Sleeping Initiative, Business Support & Regeneration, Domestic Abuse 

Support Fund, Cyber Resilience Grant, Leisure Centre Repairs, Protect & Vaccinate Fund, Household Support Fund, 

Civic Centre Plant, Rough Sleeping Accommodation Programme.  
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Note 21 Movement of Property, Plant and Equipment 
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Note 21 Movement of Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
The freehold and leasehold properties which make up the Council’s property portfolio have been valued internally at 31 March 2023 by A 
Galvin, MRICS Registered Valuer, on the undermentioned bases and in accordance with the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Manual – 
Valuation of Local Council Assets for Financial Statements.   
 

The basis of valuation is as set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies. Plant and machinery are included in the valuation of buildings. 
Valuations are performed on a rolling basis to cover all the assets over a five-year cycle. Where classes of assets have not been valued in 
the current year, these assets are reviewed to ensure that their carrying amount does not differ materially from their fair value.   
 
Comparative movements in 2022/23 are as follows: 

Other Land 

and 

Buildings

Vehicles, 

Plant, 

Furniture & 

Equipment

Infrastructure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Surplus 

Assets

Assets Under 

Construction

Tota l 

Prope rty,  

P la nt a nd 

Equipme nt

Cost or Va lua tion £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £ 0 0 0 s

At 1 April 2022 84,620    6,292    20    1,171    11,945    2,516    10 6 ,5 6 4     

Additions 255    0    0    556    108    5,393    6 ,3 12     

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 230    0    0    (22)   547    0    7 5 5     

Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale 0    0    0    0    0    (2,363)   (2 ,3 6 3 )   

Reclassifications 1,751    0    0    0    1,977    (3,728)   0     

At 3 1 Ma rc h 2 0 2 3 86,856    6,292    20    1,705    14,577    1,818    111,2 6 8     

Ac c umula te d De pre c ia tion a nd Impa irme nt

At 1 April 2022 34,349    6,181    0    814    2,538    638    4 4 ,5 2 0     

Depreciation Charge 1,830    17    0    0    78    0    1,9 2 5     

Impairment losses/(Reversals) recognised in the Surplus/Defic it in the Provision of Services 466    0    0    534    172    0    1,17 2     

Derecognition -  Disposal 0    0    0    0    0    0    0     

At 3 1 Ma rc h 2 0 2 3 36,645    6,198    0    1,348    2,788    638    4 7 ,6 17     

Ne t Book Va lue

a t 3 1 Ma rc h 2 0 2 3 50,211    94    20    357    11,789    1,180    6 3 ,6 5 1    

a t 3 1 Ma rc h 2 0 2 2 50,271    111    20    357    9,407    1,878    6 2 ,0 4 4     
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Note 21 Movement of Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 
 
Comparative movements in 2021/22 are as follows: 

 

Other Land 

and Buildings

Vehicles, 

Plant, 

Furniture & 

Equipment

Infrastructure 

Assets

Community 

Assets Surplus Assets

Assets Under 

Construction

Total Property, 

Plant and 

Equipment

Cost or Valuation £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

At 1 April 2021 80,858    6,292    20    928    12,322    1,531    101,951    

Additions 1,599    299    114    1,008    3,020    

Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 2,140    (56)   184    2,268    

Assets reclassified (to)/from Held for Sale 0    

Reclassifications 23    (675)   (23)   (675)   

At 31 March 2022 84,620    6,292    20    1,171    11,945    2,516    106,564    

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

At 1 April 2021 31,754    6,161    0    570    2,454    638    41,577    

Depreciation Charge 2,531    20    92    2,643    

Impairment losses/(Reversals) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit in the Provision of Services 28    244    (82)   190    

Derecognition - Disposal 36    74    110    

At 31 March 2022 34,349    6,181    0    814    2,538    638    44,520    

Net Book Value

at 31 March 2022 50,271    111    20    357    9,407    1,878    62,044    

at 31 March 2021 49,104    131    20    358    9,868    893    60,374     
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Note 21 Movement of Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 
 
Information on Assets Held: non-current assets held by the Council include the following: 
 

Number as at 31 March 2022 Number as at 31 March 2023

Civic Centre 1     1     

Leisure Centres with Swimming Pools 3     3     

Outdoor Swimming Pools 1     1     

Pay & Display Car Parks 23     23     

Depots 2     2     

Parks and Open Spaces (sites) 117     117     

Public Conveniences 11     11     

Retail Units 11     11     

Hospital 1     1     

GP Surgery 1     1      
 

Assets are being depreciated based on their remaining useful life using the following expected life-spans:- 
 

Asset Lifespan (years)

Civic Centre 65     

Roof 60     

Mechanical and electrical 25     

Droitwich Spa Lido and buildings 61     

Roof 35     

Mechanical and electrical 37     

Leisure centres 56-70

Roof 40-42

Mechanical and electrical 34-37

Public conveniences 65     

Supermarket 45     

Roof 30     

Mechanical and electrical 25     

Other buildings individual

IT hardware 3-5    

Hospital and GP Surgery, Pershore 65     

Roof 50     

Mechanical and electrical 25     
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Note 21 Movement of Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 
 

Revaluations - changes in asset values, net of impairment, may be summarised as follows: 
 

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£000s £000s

Public Conveniences (60) (109) 

Parking (70) 3,073  

Depots 110  (13) 

Swimming Pools and Leisure Complexes 1,626  (3,001) 

Offices 533  (178) 

Investment Properties 0  0  

Heritage 0  0  

Surplus Assets 184  (547) 

Assets held for Disposal 0  0  

Assets Under Construction 0  0  

Vehicles Plant and Equipment 0  0  

Community Assets (56) 22  

Sundry Land/Properties 0  0  

Total 2,267  (753) 

 
 

Note 22 Heritage Assets 
 

Brine 

Pumping 

Station

Other Land 

& Buildings Total Assets

£000s £000s £000s

Cost or Valuation @ 1 April 2022 48  1  49  

Addition 0  0  0  

Revaluation Increase 0  0  0  

Other Movements 0  0  0  

Depreciation 0  0  0  

Cost or Valuation @ 31 March 2023 48  1  49  

Cost or Valuation @ 1 April 2021 48  1  49  

Addition 0  0  0  

Revaluation Increase 0  0  0  

Other Movements 0  0  0  

Depreciation 0  0  0  

Cost or Valuation @ 31 March 2022 48  1  49   
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Note 23 Investment Properties 
 
The following items of income and expenditure have been accounted for in the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement: 

 

2021/2022 2022/23

£000s £000s

Rental income from investment property (2,048) 2,111 

Net Gains / losses from fair value adjustments (1,127) (1,349)

Total (3,175) 762  
 

The following table summarises the fair value of investment properties and the movement in the fair value of those properties over the 

year: 

2021/2022 2022/2023

£000s £000s

Balance at start of the year 32,854 33,981

Acquisitions 0 0

Net gains / (losses) from fair value adjustments 1,127 (1,349)

33,981 32,632  
 
All the Council’s investment properties have been value assessed as Level 2 on the fair value hierarchy for valuation purposes. 

 

Valuation Techniques Used to Determine Level 2 Fair Values for Investment Property 

 
The fair value of investment property has been measured using a market approach, which takes into account quoted prices for similar 
assets in active markets, existing lease terms and rentals, research into market evidence including market rentals and yields, the covenant 
strength for existing tenants, and data and market knowledge gained in managing the Council’s Investment Asset portfolio. Market  
conditions are such that similar properties are actively purchased and sold and the level of observable inputs are significant, leading to the 
properties being categorised as level 2 on the fair value hierarchy. 
 

There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year for investment properties. 
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Note 23 Investment Properties (continued) 
 

Highest and Best Use 

In estimating the fair value of the Council’s investment properties, the highest and best use is their current use. 

 

Valuation Process 

The investment property portfolio has been valued at 31 March 2023 in accordance with the methodologies and bases for estimation set out 

in the professional standards of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.  

 

There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the Council’s right to the 

remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment 

property or repairs, maintenance or enhancement. 

 

 

Note 24 Intangible Assets 
 

The Council accounts for its software as intangible assets and not as part of the hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment, as it is not 
an integral part of a particular IT system. 
 
All software is depreciated over 5 years, based on assessments of the period that the software is expected to be of use to the Council. 
 
The carrying amount of intangible assets for 2022/23 is fully amortised with a net carrying value of zero. Any future purchase of intangible 
assets will be charged to the IT Administration cost centre and then absorbed as an overhead across all the service headings in the Net 
Expenditure of Services. It is not possible to quantify exactly how much of the amortisation is attributable to each service heading. 
 

The movement on Intangible Asset balances during the year is as follows: 
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Note 24 Intangible Assets (continued) 

 

2021/2022 2022/2023

Other Assets Total Other Assets Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s

 - Gross carrying amounts 1,108     1,108     1,108     1,108     

 - Accumulated amortisation (1,108)    (1,108)    (1,108)    (1,108)    

Net carrying amount at start of year 0     0     0     0     

Additions - purchases 0     0     0     0     

Amortisation for the period 0     0     0     0     

Net carrying amount at end of year 0     0     0     0     

Adjusted carrying amounts:

 - Gross carrying amounts 0     0     0     0     

  - Accumulated amortisation 0     0     0     0     

0     0     0     0      

 

Note 25 Assets Held for Sale 
 

Current Assets Non-current assets

2021/2022 2022/2023 2020/2021 2021/2022

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance outstanding at start of year 358  9,127  8,948  100  

Assets newly classified as held for sale

Property, Plant and Equipment 575  2,363  100  0  

Expenditure 57  35  0  0  

Revaluation losses (52) (145) 0  (50) 

Revaluation gains 9  0  0  0  

Assets declassified as held for sale

Property, Plant and Equipment 8,948  0  (8,948) 0  

Assets sold (768) (2,120) 0  0  

Balance outstanding at year-end 9,127  9,260  100  50  

 
 

Major assets included in the balance outstanding at 31 
March 2023 are Land at Vale Park, Evesham and land at 
Milestone Ground, Broadway. However, the balance 
shown at Note 25 does not reflect the true value of these 
assets at that date.  
The CIPFA Code dictates that upward revaluations cannot 
take place while an asset is categorised as Held for Sale. 
However, the internal valuers valued the assets above as: 
Land at Vale Park, Evesham – £5.3m 
Land at Milestone Ground, Broadway - £15m 
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Note 26 Financial Instruments 
 

The following categories of financial instrument are carried in the Balance Sheet (also see Notes 27 to 30 below):  
 

31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2022 31/03/2023

Financial Assets £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Fair value through profit or 

loss 0 0 0 0 10,845 9,465 0 0 10,845 9,465 

Amortised Cost 23,115 60,779 10,381 10,194 11,754 15,731 1,008 1,011 46,258 87,715 

Total Financial Assets 23,115 60,779 10,381 10,194 22,599 25,196 1,008 1,011 57,103 97,180 

Non-financial assets 0 0 2,493 674 0 0 0 0 2,493 674 

Total as per Balance Sheet 23,115 60,779 12,874 10,868 22,599 25,196 1,008 1,011 59,596 97,854 

31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2022 31/03/2023 31/03/2022 31/03/2023

Financial Liabilities £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Amortised Cost 0 0 (24,315) (14,953) 0 0 0 0 (24,315) (14,953)

Total Financial Liabilities 0 0 (24,315) (14,953) 0 0 0 0 (24,315) (14,953)

Non-financial liabilities 0 0 (6,905) (820) 0 0 0 0 (6,905) (820)

Total as per Balance Sheet 0 0 (31,220) (15,773) 0 0 0 0 (31,220) (15,773)

Current (Short Term)

Total

Non Current (Long Term)

Non Current (Long Term)Current (Short Term)

Investments Investments Debtors Debtors

Borrowings Creditors Borrowings Creditors Total
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Note 26 Financial Instruments (continued) 
 

Value and Classification of Financial Instruments 
 
All the financial and non-financial assets and liabilities above are carried at ‘fair value’. Details of how fair value is determined for each type 
of financial instrument is given in the Council’s accounting policy 9 on Financial Instruments. Loans and Receivables are classed as Financial 
Assets at amortised cost and Creditors are classed as Financial Liabilities at amortised cost. Payments in advance and receipts in advance 
are classed as Non-Financial Assets and Liabilities respectively. 
 
Where an instrument has a maturity of less than 12 months or is a trade or other receivable, the fair value is taken to be the carrying amount 
or the billed amount. 
 
Material Soft Loans made by the Council 
 
Included in the long-term loans above is a loan of £100k which was made to Droitwich Boxing Club in 2013/14, a loan granted to Evesham 
Abbey Trust in 2021/22 of £68k plus a loan granted to Evesham United Football Club in 2011/12 which is recorded as a soft loan for 2022/23. 
These loans are interest free and are deemed to be material soft loans. The interest rate at which the loans have been made is arrived at 
by using a fair market rate of 4%. No allowance has been added to cover the risk that the loans might not be repaid as they are supported 
by legal agreements plus a charge on the property for the Droitwich Boxing Club loan. 

£000s £000s

Balance at start of year:

Opening balance 50   109   

Loans granted 68   26   

Loans repaid (4)  (9)  

Increase / (Decrease) in discounted amount during the year (5)  5   

Closing balance at end of year 109   131   

Nominal value at 31 March 109   131   

 
 

Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments  
 
The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks. As such, the key risks in relation to its financial assets are Credit Risk, the 
possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council; Liquidity Risk, the possibility that the Council might not have funds 
available to meet its commitments to make payments; Refinancing Risk, the possibility that the Council might be requiring to renew a financial 
instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms and Market Risk, the possibility that financial loss might arise for the 
Council as a result of changes in interest rates. 
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Note 26 Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
The Council uses risks management practices in Treasury Management not only to minimise the risks stated above but also to manage 
cash flows, maximise interest receivable, etc. It minimises its risks using the following measures: 
 

• by adopting the requirements of the CIPFA Treasury Management in the Public Services Code of Practice. 

• by approving annually in advance prudential indicators for the following five years, limiting the Council’s borrowing and maximum and 
minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates, the maturity structure of debt and exposure to investments maturing beyond a year 

• by approving a Treasury Management Strategy annually, which includes an investment strategy for the forthcoming year.   
 
In addition, Treasury Management Practices setting out clear operational procedures are followed and reviewed on a day-to-day basis. 
 
Credit Risk - This is minimised by use of a specified list of investment counterparties, each one having a set monetary and duration maximum 
limit. The Council receives credit rating details from its treasury management advisers daily. It also monitors various websites and the 
Financial Times newspaper daily. Any counterparty consistently falling below a satisfactory level will be removed from the list. During the 
year it will not be used unless it returns to a satisfactory level and the Council is confident that it will remain so. The Council’s maximum 
exposure to credit risk in relation to its investments in banks and building societies cannot be assessed generally as the risk of any institution 
failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be specific to each individual institution. However, the credit risk for the 
Council’s financial investments in total have not increased significantly since initial recognition due to the nature of the investments made. 
Recent experience has shown that it is rare for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments. A risk of default applies to all the 
Council’s deposits but there was no evidence on 31 March 2023 that this was likely to occur. The Council's treasury management investments 
on 31 March, except those with CCLA Investment Management Ltd and Northern Trust Global Funds PLC (see below) and Investec Bank 
Limited which has chosen not to obtain a credit rating, had credit ratings between AA- (Debt Management Office, Handelsbanken Plc, DBS 
Bank Ltd, plus 6 other local authorities) and BBB (Principality Building Society). 
 
The Council has cash invested in a Money Market Fund, Diversified Income Fund, and Local Authorities’ Property Fund, all managed by 
CCLA Investment Management Ltd. This company does not have a specific credit rating, although the Money Market Fund has a credit 
rating of AAAm. However, the trustee of the Local Authorities’ Property Fund is the Local Authorities’ Mutual Investment Trust (LAMIT), a 
body controlled by members and officers appointed by the Local Government Association, amongst others. 
 
The Council also has cash invested in a Money Market Fund managed by Northern Trust Global Funds PLC. The Fund has a credit rating 
of AAAm. 
 
The fair value of the Council’s investments in the CCLA funds on 31 March is the quoted market price. Full details are given below.  
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Note 26 Financial Instruments (continued) 
 

Fund Original Investment Value as at 31 March 2023

£000s £000s

CCLA Local Authorities' Property Fund £5,000 £4,574

CCLA Diversified Income fund £5,000 £4,891

 
 

The Council’s maximum exposure on other, non-treasury management, financial assets is limited to the carrying value of its debtors. Around 
78% of the Council’s current debtor balance of £26.554m (before provision for doubtful debts) relates to central government bodies and local 
authorities (see Note 30) and these debtors are assumed to have good credit worthiness. An aged analysis of the Council’s remaining 
debtors relating to other entities and individuals and Housing Benefit Overpayment debtors on 31 March 2023 is shown in the table below: 
 

Individual 

Debtors & Other 

Entities

Housing Benefit 

Overpayment 

Debtors

Individual 

Debtors & 

Other Entities

Housing Benefit 

Overpayment 

Debtors

31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2023

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Less than 3 months 2,156       51       1,428       63       

3 to 6 months 48       50       45       11       

6 to 12 months 75       93       99       13       

More than 12 months 965       1,074       1,914       895       

3,244       1,268       3,486       982        
 

Significant provisions have been made for doubtful debts in respect of the above sums and it is therefore considered that there should be 
no further impairment of these debts. 
 
Liquidity Risk – The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management practices and procedures referred to above as 
well as through a comprehensive cash flow management system, as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice. The Council’s Money Plan 
(medium term financial strategy) ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure. In the event of an unexpected cash 
requirement the Council has significant balances and access to borrowing to cover day to day cash flow need. There is therefore no 
significant liquidity risk. 
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Note 26 Financial Instruments (continued) 
 
Re-financing Risk and Market Risk – The Council has several strategies for managing interest rate risk and these are addressed in the 
Treasury Management Strategy. These include investing in asset classes other than cash, such as the Local Authorities’ Property Fund and 
Diversified Income Fund which are financial assets held for sale. In addition, during periods of falling interest rates and where economic 
circumstances make it favourable, the treasury management team may take fixed rate cash investments for longer periods to secure better 
long-term returns. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council as some investments have variable rates and some 
have fixed interest rates for different periods of time. If, however, all interest rates were 1% higher, investment income credited to the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in 2022/23 would have increased by £999k. Conversely the approximate impact of a 
1% fall would result in a decrease in investment income by that amount.  
 
Items of Income, Expense, Gains and Losses 
The table below shows the net gains, losses and interest revenue received on Financial Instruments during the year. 

 

2021/22 2022/23

Surplus or Deficit on 

the Provision of 

Services

Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services

£000 £000

Net (gains) / losses on:

Financial assets measured at fair 

value through profit or loss (1,055) 1,380 

Total net gains / losses (1,055) 1,380 

Interest revenue:

Financial assets measured at 

amortised cost (760) (2,416)

Total Interest Revenue (760) (2,416)

 
The main movements year on year are due to the decreased fair value of the council’s investments in the CCLA Diversified Income Fund 
and CCLA Local Authorities’ Property Fund, both of which saw a decline in performance as the economy took a turn for the worse, and an 
increase in interest yield, due to higher investment interest rates on offer during the year. 
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Note 27 Long Term Investments 
 

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£000s £000s

CCLA Local Authorities' Property Fund 5,477  4,574  

CCLA Diversified Income Fund 5,368  4,891  

Loans to Councils and Other Organisations 11,754  15,731  

22,599  25,196  

 
As stated in the Financial Instruments note above, the value of the Council’s long-term investments has been reviewed along with all 
financial instruments shown in the Balance Sheet, to ensure that the accounts show these at ‘fair value’.  On 31 March 2023 the CCLA 
Local Authorities’ Property Fund and the Diversified Income Fund are classified as Financial Investments held at Fair Value through Profit 
and Loss and are valued at market value at the balance sheet date. Loans to other organisations are valued at amortised cost.  The value 
of the two CCLA investments had notionally decreased due to the lingering adverse effects of the Covid-19 pandemic and the cost-of-
living crisis, both of which have negatively impacted the economy. On 31 March 2023 Loans to Councils and Other Organisations included 
a new £5.0m (£15m in total) treasury loan to another council, hence the increase from the previous year. 
 

Note 28 Long Term Debtors 

 
31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£000s £000s

Deferred Lease Payments 939  1,008  

Housing Advances - Private 0  0  

- Council Houses 1  0  

Home Improvement Loans (Kickstart) 68  3  

1,008  1,011  
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Note 29 Short Term Investments 
 
This represents amounts held as deposits with banks, building societies, and other local authorities which are due to mature sometime 
between 3 months and one year from the time of deposit.  
 

2021/2022 2022/2023

£000s £000s

Balance at 31 March 23,115  60,779   
 
 
As stated in Note 26 Financial Instruments, the value of the Council’s short-term investments has been reviewed, along with all financial 
instruments shown in the Balance Sheet, to ensure that the accounts show these at ‘fair value’. In practice this means that the valuation of 
these investments on 31 March 2023 includes accrued interest at the Balance Sheet date.  
 
In 2021/22 the interest rates on offer for short term investments were not much higher than those for cash equivalent investments, whilst 
carrying a greater risk. As a result, the Council had much more invested in cash equivalents than it would normally have. Interest rates 
increased consistently during 2022/23 with the yields on offer for short term investments increasing significantly compared to cash 
equivalents. Accordingly, the Council moved more of its cash back into short term investments, hence the big increase between the years. 
Note 31 Cash and Cash Equivalents shows the reverse happening.           
 

Note 30 Short Term Debtors 
 

2021/2022 2022/2023

£000s £000s

Central Government Bodies 3,388 1,278 

Other Local Authorities 5,635 5,948 

NHS Bodies 61 55 

Other Entities and Individuals 5,142 5,143 

14,226 12,424 

less  Provision for Bad Debts (1,352) (1,555)

12,874 10,869  
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Note 31 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

The balance of cash and cash equivalents is made up of the following elements: 
 

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£000s £000s

Cash held by the Authority 418  306  

Short-term deposits 57,981  13,042  

58,399  13,348   
 

The decrease in cash and cash equivalent balances on 31 March 2023 was mainly due, as mentioned in Note 29, to a shift back towards 
short term investments, from cash equivalents, as the yields on offer for those investments increased significantly in relation to those on 
offer for cash equivalents following a series of base interest rate increases during the year by the Bank of England. This is a much more 
normal investment distribution than that seen in 2021/22, which was quite an anomalous year in terms of interest rates on offer for 
investments.    

 
 

Note 32 Inventories 
 

2021/2022 2022/2023

£000s £000s

Balance outstanding at start of year 291 197

Purchases 0 11

Consumed during the year (94) (45)

Balance outstanding at year-end 197 163
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Note 33 Short Term Creditors 
 

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£000s £000s

Central Government Bodies (19,704) (7,112) 

Other Local Authorities (3,871) (5,064) 

NHS Bodies (1) (1) 

Other Entities and Individuals (7,644) (2,763) 

Bank Current Accounts 0  (833) 

(31,220) (15,773) 

 
 
 

Note 34 Provisions 
 

Balance at Receipts Payments Balance at

31 March 2022 in year in year 31 March 2023

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Business Rates Appeals (attributable to Wychavon) (2,013)    512     (1,501)    

Other Provisions (1)    (1)    

(2,014)    0     512     (1,502)     
 

 
Business Rates Appeals attributable to Wychavon: 
 
To cover the cost of appeals against valuations for Business Rates purposes. The provision is estimated based on information from the District Valuer 
and the Government. It is supported by a separate independent report taking into account both national and local knowledge regarding which appeals 
are likely to be successful and the possible value of these appeals. 
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Note 35 Usable Reserves 
 

Movements in the Council’s usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves Statement and Note 20 (Earmarked Reserves). 

31 March 2022 31 March 2023

£000s £000s

General Fund Balance 13,435 14,616 

Earmarked Reserves 71,663 71,236 

Capital Receipts Reserve 6,772 8,328 

Capital Grants Unapplied 3,903 5,663 

Total Usable Reserves 95,773 99,843 
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Note 36 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing 
 

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below, together with the resources that have been used 
to finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in future years by charges to revenue as assets are used by the Council, the 
expenditure results in an increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). This is a measure of the capital expenditure incurred 
historically by the Council that has yet to be financed. The movement in the CFR is analysed below. 

 

2021/2022 2022/2023

£000s £000s

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 11,479   10,629   

Capital Investment

Property, Plant and Equipment 3,078   6,345   

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 6,062   3,100   

Capital Debtors 1,509   663   

Sources of Finance

Capital Receipts (4,365)  (3,395)  

Loan repayments (2,159)  (1,157)  

Government Grants and Other Contributions (4,775)  (6,050)  

Earmarked Reserves (Minimum Revenue Provision set aside) (200)  (200)  

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 10,629   9,935   

Explanation of movements in year:

Movement in Capital Debtors balance (650)  (494)  

Evesham Town Centre Development to be funded by internal borrowing 0   0   

Minimum Revenue Provision (200)  (200)  

Increase (decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement (850)  (694)  
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Note 37 Capital Commitments 
  

There were no material contractual commitments for capital projects on 31 March 2023. Our proposed capital expenditure is as follows: 
 

2022/23 2023/24 Future Years

Priorities £000s £000s £000s

Supporting People 8,145 9,906 7,692

Strong Economy & Places 5,029 6,216 1,181

Sustainable Environment 3,537 475 0

Central & Support 0 0 0

16,711 16,597 8,873

Major Schemes included above:

Community Legacy grants 968 658 1,000

Vale Park Development 1,122 0 0

Evesham Cycling Centre 1,917 0 0

Better Care Fund 1,634 1,634 6,538

Council Investment in Housing 0 3,393 0

Local Authority Housing Fund 0 2,593 0

Community Sports Facilities at Pershore High 

School 100 1,400 0

Worcester 6 Business Park 1,000 0 0

Pershore Station Footbridge and Car park 1,250 750 0

UK Shared Prosperity Fund 185 383 771

Evesham Public Hall 750 3,450 0

 
 

Note 38 Leases 
   

Council as Lessor 
 
Operating Leases 
 
The Council leases out property under operating leases for the following purposes: 
 

• for the provision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and community centres and 

• for economic development purposes to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local businesses 
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Note 38 Leases (continued) 
 
The Council has granted the following, which are accounted for as operational leases: 
 
1. To Waitrose Limited - land and store adjacent to The Saltway, Droitwich, at £595,000 per annum (minimum) for 26 years and 3 

months, commencing April 2005. The rent was reviewed to £700,000 per annum on 28 February 2010.  A further rent review was 
undertaken on 11 January 2016 and 28 February 2020 no increase in rent was the outcome. 
 

2. To Worcestershire Health and Care NHS Trust – hospital, Queen Elizabeth Drive, Pershore, at £307,151 per annum for 25 years, 
commencing 28 October 2006. The rent was reviewed to £325,000 on 15th December 2009, £328,000 per annum on 15th December 
2012, £331,500 per annum on 15 December 2015, £341,500 on 15 December 2018 and £348,000 from 15th December 2021.  
  

3. To The Partners of Pershore Medical Centre – health centre, Queen Elizabeth Drive, Pershore, at £224,978 per annum for 25 years, 
commencing 28 October 2006. The rent was reviewed to £274,500 per annum on 23 November 2009, £276,000 per annum on 23 
November 2012, £278,950 per annum from 23 November 2015, £287,500 per annum from 23 November 2018.  The rent was further 
reviewed to £293,000 per annum from 23 November 2021. 

 
4. To PJK Investments (Riverside Evesham) Limited – ground floor of Riverside Shopping Centre, Evesham, at 9% of the rental income 

from retail units, for 175 years, from 31 March 1989. (£85,500 was received in 2022/23).  
 

5. To Waitrose Limited – Waitrose, Merstow Green, Evesham, at £499,950 per annum adjusted for the rent free period to £447,248 per 
annum for the straight-line charge over the lease term.  For 21 years commencing 23 July 2018 with an initial rent free period to 
08/10/2020.   

 
6. To A. F. Blackmore & Son Limited (trading as SPAR) – Blake Avenue Shop, Droitwich, at £45,000 per annum for 15 Years 

commencing 1 December 2018, adjusted for the three month rent free period to £44,000 per annum for the straight-line charge over 
the lease term.   

 
7. To Carsmetix Limited – Units 1 to 4 Willmotts Business Centre, Pershore at £78,032 per annum plus VAT, for 15 years commencing 

03/03/2020, adjusted for a £15,000 reduction in rent for the first year giving a straight-line charge of £77,032 per annum over the lease 
term.   
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Note 38 Leases (continued) 

• To Opkill Limited – Units A1 and A2 Willmotts Business Centre, Pershore at £5,500 and £3,500 per annum plus VAT, 
commencing 03/03/2020 to 24/07/2022, the rent was subsequently reduced to £4,750 per annum for both units, this was agreed 
in 2020/21.  Opkill Limited vacated 01.10.2022. 

 
8. To Bradsett Limited – Sites 7 & 21 Berry Hill Industrial Estate, Droitwich at current rental income of £37,000.  Commencing 25/03/1966 

for 99 years assigned to Bradsett Limited 23/04/2004.  Rent reviews at years 33 and 66. 
 
9. To Dyson Properties (West Midlands) Limited – site 28B Berry Hill Industrial Estate, Droitwich at a current rental income of £12,735.  

Commencing 18/06/1975 for 99 years, lease assigned to Dyson Properties (West Midlands) Limited 024/04/2020.  Rent reviews at 
years 33 and 66. 

 
10. To Wales and The West Utilities Limited – Site Number 5 Four Pools Industrial Estate, Evesham at a current rental income of £5,800. 

Commencing 16/10/1978 for 99 years with rent reviews every 7 years.  Lease assigned to Wales and The West Utilities Ltd 
26/03/2019.  

 
11. To Harrison Products Co Ltd – Unit C Vale Park, Evesham.  Term 10 years commencing 19/01/2023 with a rent free period of 3 

months.  Rent commencing 19/04/2023 at £190,868 per annum, giving a straight-line adjusted amount for the rent free period of 
£186,161.67per annum. 

 
The operating leases detailed above are held by the authority as Investment Properties. Any additions, impairments or revaluations are 
accounted for and recorded in Note 23. 
 
The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in future years are: 

 
 

2021/2022 2022/2023

£000s £000s

Not later than one year 1,788  1,972  

Later than one year and not later than five years 7,145  7,889  

Later than five years 23,330  22,438  

32,263  32,299   
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Note 38 Leases (continued) 
 
The minimum lease payments receivable does not include rents that are contingent on events taking place after the lease was entered into, 
such as adjustments following rent reviews. In 2022/23 £279,631 contingent rents were received by the Council (2021/22 £266,292).  
 
Council as a Lessee 
 
The Council leases a few property assets and some of the leases that were previously treated as operational leases were re-classified as 
finance leases upon IFRS implementation. All of these were considered to be immaterial in value and thus no adjustments have been 
made to the accounts in respect of leased assets. 
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Notes Supporting the Cash Flow Statement 
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Note 39 Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities 
 

The cash flows for the operating activities include the following:  
 

2021/2022 2022/2023

£000s £000s

Interest received (343)  (1,343)  

 
 

The surplus on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following non-cash movements: 

2021/2022 2022/2023

£000s £000s

Depreciation of non-current assets (2,643)  (1,925)  

Impairment and downward valuations of non-current assets (190)  (1,172)  

Movement in pension liability (1,216)  (1,702)  

Adjustments involving the Financial Instrument Adjustments Account (5)  (43)  

Adjustments involving the Investment Adjustments Account 1,056   (1,380)  

(Increase)/Decrease in provisions (752)  512   

Carrying amount of non-current assets and non current assets held for sale, sold or de-recognised (921)  (2,315)  

Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 1,128   (1,346)  

Increase/(Decrease) in inventories (94)  (34)  

Increase/(Decrease) in debtors (6,889)  835   

(Increase)/Decrease in creditors (7,544)  15,659   

Net Non-Cash Movements (18,070)  7,089   
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Note 39 Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities (continued) 

 
The surplus on the provision of services has been adjusted for the following items that are investing or financing activities: 

 

2021/2022 2022/2023

£000s £000s

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets 986 4,613 

Net adjustments that are investing or financing 986 4,613 

 
 
 
 

Note 40 Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 
 
 

2021/2022 2022/2023

£000s £000s

Purchase of property, plant & equipment,investment property and intangible assets 5,829 10,423 

Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 61,350 73,891 

Proceeds from the sale of property,plant & equipment, investment property and intangible assets (929) (4,578)

Proceeds from short and long term investments (75,500) (33,000)

Net cash flows from investing activities (9,250) 46,736 
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Other Notes and Supplementary Accounts 
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Note 41 Related Parties 
 

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties – bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or 

influence the Council, or to be controlled or influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent 

to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might have secured the ability to limit another 

party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council. 
 

UK Government 

The UK Government has effective control over the general operations of the Council. It is responsible for providing the statutory framework 

within which the Council operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the 

transactions that the Council has with other parties (e.g. council tax bills, housing benefits). Grants received from Government departments 

are set out in detail in Note 13. 

 

Local Government 

The Council provides a number of services on behalf of other local authorities and has service level agreements for these arrangements. 

The services include a car parking administration service for Wyre Forest District Council, Malvern Hills District Council and Telford & 

Wrekin Council, a car parking service for Redditch Borough Council, Bromsgrove District Council and for Stratford on Avon District 

Council, and a CCTV service for Worcester City Council.  
 

In addition, the Council provides a procurement service for Worcester City Council and Malvern Hills District Council, as well as a Land 

Drainage service for Worcestershire County Council, Malvern Hills District Council and Worcester City Council. The value of these 

services, amounts received and any amounts outstanding at 31 March 2023 are included in the table below: 
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Note 41 Related Parties (continued) 
 

Service Council

Value of 

Service in 

2022/23

Amount 

Received in 

2022/23

Payment from 

Wychavon 

outstanding at 

31/03/2023

Receipt due to 

Wychavon 

outstanding at 

31/03/2023

£ £ £ £

Car parking administration Wyre Forest District Council 64,719 (64,719) 0 0 

Car parking administration Malvern Hills District Council 31,034 (34,625) 3,592 0 

Car parking administration Telford & Wrekin Council 20,168 (21,502) 1,333 0 

Car parking administration North Warwickshire Borough Council 27,500 (29,583) 2,083 0 

Car parking services Redditch Borough Council 61,767 (45,788) 0 (15,979)

Car parking services Bromsgrove District Council 257,025 (193,637) 0 (63,389)

Car parking services Stratford-upon-Avon District Council 49,666 (49,666) 0 0 

CCTV Worcester City Council 78,670 (78,670) 0 0 

Procurement service Worcester City Council 60,731 (44,400) 0 (16,331)

Procurement service Malvern Hills District Council 19,012 (14,194) 0 (4,819)

South Worcestershire Land Drainage Partnership Worcestershire County Council 54,000 (40,500) 0 (13,500)

South Worcestershire Land Drainage Partnership Malvern Hills District Council 14,000 (10,500) 0 (3,500)

South Worcestershire Land Drainage Partnership Worcester City Council 40,000 (30,000) 0 (10,000)

 
 

Members 

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating policies. Members’ allowances paid in 2022/23 are 

shown in Note 11. The Council maintains a register of Councillors’ interests that is regularly updated and available for public inspection.  

During 2022/23, a number of Wychavon District Councillors were also members of Worcestershire County Council, Hereford and 

Worcester Fire and Rescue Authority, West Mercia Police and Crime Panel and town and parish councils, all of which are preceptors of 

the Council. In 2022/23 the Council had member representatives on the following outside bodies: 

 

• Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Conservation Board 

• Coventry Charity 

• Deacle & Prince Henry’s Education Foundation 
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Note 41 Related Parties (continued) 

 

• Evesham Arts Centre Management Committee 

• Number 8 – Company Board (Pershore Arts Centre) 

• Peopleton Parish Land Trustees 

• Pershore Volunteer Centre 

• Pershore Youth Fellowship – Riverside Centre 

• Smith Memorial Collection Trust 

• Parking and Traffic Regulations Outside London Adjudication Joint Committee 

• Vale of Evesham Commerce & Tourism Association (VECTA) 
• Vale of Evesham Volunteer Centre Management Committee 

• Welcome to Our Future 

• Worcestershire Local Access Forum 

• Wychavon & Malvern CAB (Citizens Advice Bureau) 
 

Members also represent the Council on the Worcestershire Regulatory Services Board. 
 

In 2022/23 the Council paid grants and contributions of £5,362 to Cotswold Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty Board.  

Number 8 was paid £1,500 in relation to a pantomime event which took place in December 2022. The Pershore Volunteer Centre was paid 

£10,833 as part of an ongoing SLA, £12,931 Household Support Grant and £2,500 in Homes for Ukraine support. 

 

In 2022/23 some Members registered an interest in companies or organisations that the Council paid grants or contributions to during the 

year. EW Huxley & Son was paid a £5,000 contribution towards the Evesham Angling Festival. The Council paid a grant of £3,925 to 

Gloverspiece School from the Breakfast Club Grant Fund and paid £1,875 in Social Mobility.  

 

Officers 

 

There is a single Joint Senior Management Team for both Wychavon District Council and Malvern Hills District Council. The Council’s 

Joint Chief Executive, Vic Allison, is also the Chief Executive of Malvern Hills District Council and has been in this post since 1st August  
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Note 41 Related Parties (continued) 
 
2020. Other shared posts include the Director of Economy and Environment, the Director of Communities & Housing, the Director of 

Planning & Infrastructure and the Director of Legal and Governance. 

 

The Director of Communities and Housing, Jennifer Taylor, is a Trustee of Gloucester Culture Trust. She took up this position in November 

2022. This is a voluntary role and is not remunerated. 
 

Operations Jointly Controlled by the Council 

The Council is a member of the Worcestershire Regulatory Services Board. This partnership is a jointly controlled operation which is 

hosted by Bromsgrove District Council.  

 

Revenues and Benefits, Building Control and IT are managed as shared services in South Worcestershire. The South Worcestershire 

Joint Committee was dissolved in October 2016 and management boards are now responsible for the strategic management of these 

services. 
 

In addition, Worcester City Council hosts Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service and the Council is a partner in this arrangement.  
 

The value of these services, payments and receipts and any outstanding amounts are detailed in the table below: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Su
p

p
lem

en
tary A

cco
u

n
ts an

d
 N

o
tes 2

0
2

2
/2

3
 

SUBJE
CT T

O A
UDIT



120 | P a g e  

 

Note 41 Related Parties (continued) 

Shared Service / Council

Value of 

Service in 

2022/23

Payment / 

Receipt in 

2022/23

Payment from 

Wychavon 

outstanding as 

at 31/03/2023

Receipt due to 

Wychavon 

outstanding at 

31/03/2023

£ £ £ £

Regulatory Services – Bromsgrove District Council 883,781 821,734 62,047 0

Building Control – Malvern Hills District Council 166,964 211,878 0 (44,914)

Revenues & Benefits – Worcester City Council 966,796 (939,705) 0 (27,091)

Revenues & Benefits – Malvern Hills District Council 439,454 (427,140) 0 (12,314)

Revenues & Benefits – Wychavon District Council 791,021 (791,021) 0 0

IT Service – Worcester City Council 656,637 (471,222) 0 (185,415)

IT Service – Malvern Hills District Council 398,173 (285,741) 0 (112,432)

IT Service - Wychavon District Council 691,564 (691,564) 0 0

Internal Audit - Worcester City Council 78,290 78,290 0 0

 
 
Joint working with Malvern Hills District Council 
 

As detailed under the ‘Officers’ section of this Note, there is a Joint Senior Management Team in place for Wychavon District Council and 

Malvern Hills District Council. Details of payments between the two Councils for these employees are included under Note 10, Officer 

Remuneration.  
 

Further joint working between the two Councils includes: 

• A shared Legal Service hosted by Malvern Hills District Council. 

• A shared Communications Service, with posts hosted by both Councils and recharged accordingly. 

• A shared Housing Service hosted by Wychavon District Council.  

• A shared Heritage Service hosted by Wychavon District Council. 

• A shared Planning Policy Service hosted by Wychavon District Council. 

• A shared Corporate Database Service hosted by Wychavon District Council 
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Note 41 Related Parties (continued) 

 

• A shared Planning Administration Service hosted by Wychavon District Council and 

• A shared Development Management & Planning Enforcement Service hosted by Malvern Hills District Council. 

• A shared HR Service hosted by Wychavon District Council. 

• Management of Wychavon’s Property Service by Malvern Hills District Council. 

• A joint Carbon Reduction Officer post employed by Malvern Hills District Council. 

 

The value of these services, payments and receipts and any outstanding amounts are detailed in the table below: 

 

Service

Value of 

Service in 

2022/23

Payment / 

Receipt in 

2022/23

Payment from 

Wychavon 

outstanding as 

at 31/03/2023

Receipt due 

to Wychavon 

outstanding at 

31/03/2023

£ £ £ £

Legal Shared Service 354,815 273,177 81,639 0

Communications - Wychavon District Council 42,337 (33,987) 0 (8,349)

Communications - Malvern Hills District Council 25,904 19,423 6,481 0

Housing Shared Service 376,139 (263,893) 0 (112,246)

Heritage Shared Service 167,403 (131,475) 0 (35,928)

Policy Planning Shared Service 238,281 (183,264) 0 (55,017)

Corporate Database Shared Service 66,000 (66,000) 0 0

Planning Administration Shared Service 173,753 (135,600) 0 (38,153)

Development Management & Planning Enforcement 

Shared Service
1,245,512 999,257 246,255 0

HR Shared Service 186,860 (135,413) 0 (51,448)

Property Service Management 22,902 17,201 5,701 0

Community Safety and Environmental Protection 246,374 194,367 52,007 0

Carbon Reduction Officer 26,027 20,973 5,054 0
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Note 42 Events After the Balance Sheet Date 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive (S151 Officer) authorised the Statement of Accounts on XXX 2022. Events taking place after this date are not 
reflected in the financial statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 
31 March 2023, the figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this 
information. 
 
It has been agreed that there are no non-adjusting events after the Balance Sheet date. 

 
 

Note 43 Contingent Liabilities 
 
 

At 31 March 2023, the Council had one contingent liability as follows:  
 

• Municipal Mutual Insurance - Employers Liability Policy 
On 28 March 2012, a Supreme Court judgement in the Employers Liability Policy ‘trigger litigation’ relating to mesothelioma claims 
found against Municipal Mutual Insurance Limited (MMI), a previous insurer of the Council, which ceased writing insurance business 
on 30 September 1992 and went into run off. The directors of MMI triggered MMI’s Scheme of Arrangement under section 425 of the 
Companies Act 1985 (now section 899 of the Companies Act 2006) on 13 November 2012 and appointed Ernst and Young to manage 
the businesses, affairs and assets of MMI in accordance with the terms of the Scheme. In 2013/14 the Council, a scheme creditor, 
paid MMI a levy of £7,720 and in early 2016/17 the Council paid a further levy of £24,976 as part of this Scheme of Arrangement. 
Although we believe that a significant proportion of the liability under this scheme has now been settled, there is a possibility of further 
levies from MMI and it is still the case that the final liability is unknown. 
 

• Business Rates Appeals 
The Council’s Collection Fund account shows that there is a provision of £3.8m at 31 March 2023 for potential Business Rates 
appeals, of which 40% is attributable to Wychavon District Council, 50% to the Government, 9% to Worcestershire County Council and 
1% to Hereford and Worcester Fire Authority. Although the Council has been prudent in setting its Business Rates appeals provision, 
there is still some uncertainty around the volume of refunds which will be liable under the new three stage appeal mechanism of 
Check, Challenge and Appeal. In addition there is an increasing risk of appeals being allowed for Material Change of Circumstance 
(MCC) although the government have ruled that MCC as a result of Covid-19 is to be disallowed. If the number and scale of 
successful appeals exceed the provision, then the cost of this will need to be funded from the Council’s reserves. 
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Note 44 Going Concern Disclosure 
 

The CIPFA Code (paragraph 2.1.2.9 of the Code) confirms that local authority accounts must be prepared on a going concern basis. 

The Covid-19 restrictions in place at the start of 2021/22 created significant issues for many businesses and residents and as a 

consequence council income was significantly reduced. However council income has since recovered and in 2022/23 was back to pre-

Covid levels. The cost-of-living crisis was addressed in 2022/23 in the revised budget in November 2022: energy budgets were increased 

by 13% and contracts were increased by known inflation levels. We have increased budgets further in 2023/24 by 9.5% and have 

assumed a 1% non-payment of council tax in our tax base calculations (normally 0.5%). Our generous General Fund balances have 

allowed us to absorb these pressures without affecting service delivery. 

Our balances at 31 March 2023 compared to prior years are as follows: 
 

Date General Fund

Housing 

Revenue 

Earmarked 

Reserves

£000 £000 £000

31/03/2021 £10.92 n/a £72.67

31/03/2022 £13.44 n/a £71.66

31/03/2023 £14.62 n/a £71.24
 

 
The council has undertaken an assessment of the impact on 2022/23 and 2023/24, considering liquidity, general fund balances and 

reserves.  Our current medium-term financial plan assumes a surplus of £900k in 2023/24 with no use of reserves other than those 

earmarked for specific purposes and a general fund balance in excess of £14m. It assumes a deficit of £114k in 2024/25 due to loss of 

new Homes Bonus and assumed loss of Business Rates Growth leaving a general fund balance of £14.4m. 

A detailed cashflow forecast has been prepared covering the period to 31st March 2024. This demonstrates the Council has sufficient 

liquidity throughout the period to meet requirements without using any longer-term investments or borrowing. 
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Collection Fund Accounts 2022/23 
 
This account reflects the statutory requirement for billing authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund, which shows the transactions 
of the billing authority in relation to Business Rates (non-domestic rates) and Council Tax, and illustrates how these have been distributed 
to the Government, preceptors and the Council’s General Fund.  
 
The Collection Fund is managed and administered by Wychavon District Council, as the billing authority, on behalf of the council tax 
payers and business rate payers within its area. All sums levied from Council Tax and Business Rates are paid into the Fund together with 
relevant Government grants. Payments out of the Fund include precept payments to Central Government, Worcestershire County Council, 
the Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia, Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority, Wychavon District Council and Town and 
Parish Councils to fund their net service requirements. 
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Collection Fund Accounts 2022/23 (continued) 
 
REVENUE ACCOUNT Notes

Business 

Rates Council Tax

Business 

Rates

Council 

Tax

£000s £000s £000s £000s

INCOME

Council Tax Receivable (96,510) (101,737) 1

Business Rates Receivable (37,280) (43,294) 2

Total Income (37,280) (96,510) (43,294) (101,737) 

EXPENDITURE

Apportionment of Previous Year Surplus/(deficit)

Central Government (7,813) 0  (7,650) 0  

Wychavon District Council (7,035) (25) (6,120) 83  

Worcestershire County Council 1,323  (192) (1,377) 655  

Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia 0  (33) 0  119  

Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority (137) (13) (153) 43  

(13,662) (263) (15,300) 900  

Precepts, Demands and Shares

Central Government 22,206  0  20,233  0  

Wychavon District Council - General Fund 17,765  6,209  16,186  6,342  

Wychavon District Council - Special Levies 0  68  0  73  

Worcestershire County Council 3,997  69,487  3,642  73,776  

Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia 0  12,420  0  13,187  

Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority 444  4,533  405  4,722  

Town and Parish Councils 2,696  2,815  

44,412  95,413  40,466  100,915  

Charges to Collection Fund

Write Offs / (Ons) (2,675) (11) 515  28  

Interest 0  0  0  0  

Increase / (Decrease) in Provision for Appeals 1,878  0  (1,276) 0  

Cost of Collection 189  0  189  0  

Renewable Energy Disregard 644  0  483  0  

Transitional Protection Payable/(Receivable) 281  0  54  0  

317  (11) (35) 28  

Movement on the Fund Balance

Fund Balance on 1 April 40,287  810  34,074  (561) 

(Surplus) / Deficit for the Year (6,213) (1,371) (18,163) 106  

Fund Balance on 31 March 34,074  (561) 15,911  (455) 

2021/2022 2022/2023
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Note 1 to the Collection Fund Council Tax Base 
 

Council tax income derives from charges made to domestic properties. Each property was classified into one of eight valuation bands (A-
H), based on their market value as at 1 April 1991.  
  
The council tax base, which is the number of chargeable dwellings in each valuation band (adjusted for dwellings where discounts and 
exemptions apply) expressed as an equivalent number of Band D dwellings was calculated for 2022/23 as follows: 
 

Equivalent No. Band D Band D

Tax Band Property Value of Dwellings Ratio Equivalent

Disabled Band A 16.2 5/9 9     

A up to £40,000 4,296.0 6/9 2,864     

B between £40,001 and £52,000 8,970.4 7/9 6,977     

C between £52,001 and £68,000 11,497.5 8/9 10,220     

D between £68,001 and £88,000 7,398.0 9/9 7,398     

E between £88,001 and £120,000 7,137.0 11/9 8,723     

F between £120,001 and £160,000 6,278.5 13/9 9,069     

G between £160,001 and £320,000 4,451.4 15/9 7,419     

H over £320,000 202.5 18/9 405     

Total 50,247.5 53,084     

Less adjustment for non-collection (0.5%) -265     

Council Tax Base 52,819     

(Band D Equivalent figures have been rounded)  
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Note 1 to the Collection Fund Council Tax (continued) 
 
Council Tax Levy at Band D 
 
The basic amount of council tax for 2022/23 for a band D property was as follows: 
 

Worcestershire County Council £1,396.78

Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia £249.66

Wychavon District Council* £120.08

Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority £89.40

£1,855.92

ADD Town and Parish Councils (average) £51.91

Average Council Tax Levy at Band D* £1,907.83  

 
 
*Before special levies 
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Note 2 to the Collection Fund Business Rates/National Non 
Domestic Rates (NNDR) 

 

The Council is responsible for collecting Business Rates (non-domestic rates) for its area which are based on local rateable values 

multiplied by a national uniform rate. The total local rateable value at 31 March 2023 was £134,447,624 (as per the Valuation Office) and 

national uniform rate was 51.2p and 49.9p for small businesses. 

Following the localisation of Business Rates (non-domestic rates), the Council now pays the rates collected over to the Government and 
major preceptors – Worcestershire County Council and Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority, in accordance with a payment schedule 
determined at the start of the financial year and retains an amount for itself. The Council is also a member of the Worcestershire Business 
Rates Pool, meaning that levy and safety net payments are calculated on a pooled basis rather than on an individual Council basis. 
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Note 3 to the Collection Fund Surplus and Deficits 
 

The Collection Fund surplus for Council Tax as at 31 March 2023 was £455k (31 March 2022 £561k surplus). An estimated surplus for the 
year of £363k was declared in January 2023 and this was taken into account by the Council and its preceptor authorities when setting the 
Council Tax for 2023/24. 
 
The Collection Fund surplus for Business Rates as at 31 March 2023 was £6.681m (31 March 2022 £11.482m deficit). An estimated 
Business Rates surplus of £5.297m was declared in January 2023 and this was taken into account by the Council and its preceptor 
authorities when producing the 2023/24 NNDR1 Government return.  
 
The table below shows the split of the Council Tax and Business Rates (surpluses) / deficits between the preceptors. 

 

Preceptor Council Tax Council Tax Business Rates Business Rates

2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23

£000s £000s £000s £000s

Central Government 0 0 5,741 (3,340)

Wychavon District Council (51) (40) 4,593 (2,672)

Worcestershire County Council (407) (333) 1,033 (602)

Police and Crime Commissioner for West Mercia (76) (61) 0 0 

Hereford & Worcester Fire Authority (27) (21) 115 (67)

Total (561) (455) 11,482 (6,681)  
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Note 4 to the Collection Fund Other Information 
 

Council Tax 2022/23

Worcestershire 

County Council

Police and Crime Commissioner for 

West Mercia

Hereford & Worcester Fire 

Authority

Wychavon District 

Council Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Debtors (in Arrears) 4,399  794  283  650  6,126  

Provision for Non-Payment (181) (33) (12) (22) (248) 

Creditor (in Advance) (1,805) (326) (116) (219) (2,466) 

Amounts Written Off / (On) 48  9  3  6  66  

Business Rates 2022/23

Central 

Government Worcestershire County Council

Hereford & Worcester Fire 

Authority

Wychavon District 

Council Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Debtors (in Arrears) 1,071  193  21  857  2,142  

Provision for Non-Payment (394) (71) (8) (315) (788) 

Creditor (in Advance) (347) (62) (7) (279) (695) 

Provision for Appeals (1,878) (338) (38) (1,501) (3,755) 

Amounts Written Off / (On) 30  5  1  24  60   
 
 

Note 5 to the Collection Fund Collection Rates 
 
The Council’s collection rates are detailed in the table below: 

Collection Rate 2021/22 2022/23

% %

Council Tax 98.54         96.11         

Business Rates 97.41         96.28          

Su
p

p
lem

en
tary A

cco
u

n
ts an

d
 N

o
tes 2

0
2

0
/2

1
 

Su
p

p
lem

en
tary A

cco
u

n
ts an

d
 N

o
tes 2

0
2

2
/2

3
 

SUBJE
CT T

O A
UDIT



130 | P a g e  

 

 

Glossary, Statement of Responsibilities & Auditor’s Report 
SUBJE

CT T
O A

UDIT



131 | P a g e  

 

Glossary 

 

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 

This is the length of time covered by the accounts.  It is normally 

a period of twelve months commencing on 1st April.  The end of 

the accounting period is the balance sheet date 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The policies and concepts used in the preparation of the 

accounts. 

ACCRUAL 

This is an accounting concept used when preparing accounts and 

is carried out to ensure that items of income and expenditure are 

shown in the accounting period that they are earned or incurred, 

not as the money is received or paid. 

ACTUARY 

An expert who puts a value to pension scheme assets and 

liabilities. 

ACTUARIAL GAINS AND LOSSES 

Changes in the net pensions liability that arise because events 

have not matched assumptions at the last actuarial valuation or 

because actuarial assumptions have changed. 

AMORTISED COST 

This is the written down value of an asset or liability e.g. the value 

after depreciation or impairment has been applied. 

 

ASSET 

An asset is something that Wychavon owns that has a value, 

such as premises, equipment or cash.  

• A current asset is one that will be used or cease to have 

material value by the end of the next financial year e.g. 

inventories (stock) and debtors 

• A long term or non current asset provides Wychavon 

benefits for a period of more than one year e.g a building like 

the Civic Centre. 

ASSETS UNDER CONSTRUCTION 

Assets that are partly completed at the balance sheet date 

AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 

An audit is an examination by an independent expert of an 

organisation’s financial affairs to check that the relevant legal 

obligations and codes of practice have been followed.   

BALANCE SHEET 

A financial statement summarising the council’s assets, liabilities 

and other balances at the end of each accounting period. 

BILLING AUTHORITY 

A local authority responsible for collecting Council Tax and 

National Non-Domestic Rates. 

BUDGET 

A budget is a financial statement that expresses an organisation’s 

service delivery plans and capital programmes in monetary terms. 
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Glossary (continued) 

 

BUSINESS RATES OR NATIONAL NON-DOMESTIC RATES 

(NNDR) 

This is a national scheme for collecting contributions from 

businesses towards the cost of local government services.  Each 

business property has a rateable value.  The Government 

determines how much a business has to pay per £ of rateable 

value each year.  Prior to April 2013 all NNDR income collected 

by the council was paid over to the Government for redistribution. 

From April 2013 councils have been able to retain a proportion of 

NNDR growth to supplement their own income   

CAPITAL CHARGES 

This is a charge made to an organisation’s Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure  Statement to reflect the cost of utilising 

long term assets in the provision of services. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

Expenditure on the acquisition of long term assets e.g. property, 

plant or equipment that will be used to provide services beyond 

the current accounting period or expenditure that adds value to 

an existing long term asset. Also included in this definition is 

expenditure that does not add value to a council asset but is 

permitted to be capitalised and is treated as Revenue 

Expenditure funded from Capital under Statute (REFCUS). 

CAPITAL RECEIPT 

These are the proceeds from the sale of non current assets, such 

as land or buildings. Capital receipts cannot be used to fund 

revenue services. 

 

CAPITAL FINANCING 

This term describes the various sources of money used to pay for 

capital expenditure. There are various options available – the 

methods used by Wychavon District Council are financing from 

general or earmarked reserves, usable capital receipts, capital 

grants and capital contributions. 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

This is a financial summary of planned capital expenditure that 

Wychavon intends to carry out over a specified time period. 

CIPFA 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 

CODE OF PRACTICE ON LOCAL AUTHORITY ACCOUNTING 

The code of practice provides a framework for publishing local 

authority statutory accounts based on accounting standards and 

interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards 

Board (IASB) and International Financial Reporting 

Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), modified to reflect specific 

statutory requirements.  

COLLECTION FUND 

A separate fund recording the expenditure and income relating to 

council tax and national non-domestic business rates. 

COMMUNITY ASSETS 

This is the land and property Wychavon intends to own forever.  

They generally have no determinable useful life and there are 

often restrictions regarding their sale.  Examples of Wychavon  
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Glossary (continued) 

 

District Council’s community assets are its parks and open 

spaces. 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 

STATEMENT 

This is a statement of the council’s net revenue costs (or cost of 

providing services) in the year. The surplus or deficit for the year 

shown on this statement is reconciled to the use of Council’s 

reserves in the linked Movement in Reserves Statements (MIRS) 

CONSISTENCY 

This is one of the fundamental accounting concepts.  It requires 

accountants to treat similar items of income and expenditure the 

same way – both within an accounting period and from one 

accounting period to the next. 

CONSUME 

The use of goods and services. The consumption of a fixed asset 

is the decline in value of that asset as a result of normal wear and 

tear or obsolescence. 

CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

This is a possible financial obligation that arises from past events 

and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence of 

uncertain future events not within the council’s control. 

COUNCIL TAX BASE 

The amount calculated by each billing authority from which the 

entitlement of its share is derived. 

CREDITOR 

This is the amount of money the council owes to others for goods 

and services that have been supplied in the accounting period but 

not paid for.  

DEBTOR 

This is the amount of money others owe the council for goods 

and services that they have received but have not paid for by the 

end of the accounting period.  

DEPRECIATION 

This is a charge made to the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement each year that reflects the reduction in the 

value of property, plant and equipment used to deliver services. 

DONATED ASSETS 

These are assets that have been given to the council by 

benefactors and for which no consideration has been paid.  

EARMARKED RESERVES 

Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside the definition of 

provisions. 

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

Those (non-adjusting) events, both favourable and unfavourable, 

of such materiality that their disclosure is required for the fair 

presentation of the Statement of Accounts, which occur between 

the Balance Sheet date and the date on which the Accounts are 

authorised for issue by the responsible financial officer. 
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Glossary (continued) 

 

FAIR VALUE 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or 

paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 

participants at the measurement date. 

FINANCE LEASE 

This is a lease where the risk or reward of holding the asset is 

taken on by the lessee. 

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

These are transactions which generate an asset in the accounts 

of one organisation and a liability in the accounts of another. 

GENERAL FUND 

This is the account in which annual running costs of the council 

and income, including grant income, are held, with the balance on 

the account being the amount chargeable to the council tax 

payers.      

GOVERNMENT GRANTS 

Grants made by the Government towards either revenue or 

capital expenditure to help with the cost of providing services and 

capital projects. Some government grants have restrictions on 

how they may be used whilst others are unrestricted. 

IFRS (INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 

STANDARDS) 

International Financial Reporting Standards advise the 

accounting treatment and disclosure requirements of transactions 

so that the Council’s accounts present a ‘true and fair view’ of the 

financial position of the Council. 

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

Land and buildings non-current assets held only for investment 

potential. 

HERITAGE ASSETS 

These are assets that are deemed to have cultural, environmental 

or historical significance and that are held principally for their 

contribution to knowledge and culture.  

HOUSING ACT ADVANCES 

These are loans that Wychavon has previously made to 

individuals or housing associations to help fund the cost of 

constructing, acquiring or improving homes. Loans to individuals 

are termed mortgages. 

HOUSING BENEFITS 

This is the national system for giving financial assistance to 

individuals towards certain housing costs.  The Revenues and 

Benefits Shared Service administers the scheme for Wychavon 

residents.  The Government subsidises the cost of the service. 

From October 2018, individuals in receipt of Housing Benefits are 

gradually being moved by the Government to a Government-

managed scheme called Universal Credit.  

IMPAIRMENT 

This is a reduction in the value of an asset as shown in the 

balance sheet to reflect its true value.  
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Glossary (continued) 

 

INCOME 

This is the money that the council receives or expects to receive 

from any source including fees, charges, sales, grants and 

interest. 

INVENTORIES (OR STOCKS) 

These are items that have been bought to use on a continuing 

basis but are stored and have not yet been used.  Examples are 

wheeled bins for waste and recycling collection and 

consumables. 

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

These are the assets owned by the council that it does not 

directly occupy or use in the delivery of services.  The main 

objective of owning these assets is to generate income for the 

council. 

LIABILITY 

The council has a liability that has to be included in its accounts 

when it owes money to others.  There are several types of 

liability:- 

• A current liability is a sum of money that will or might be 

payable during the next accounting period e.g. creditors. 

  

• A deferred liability is a sum of money that will not be payable 

until some point after the next accounting period or is paid off 

over a number of accounting periods.   

 

MATERIALITY 

This is one of the main accounting concepts.  It ensures that the 

accounts include all the transactions that, if omitted, would lead to 

a significant distortion of the financial position at the end of the 

accounting period. 

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

A statement which analyses movements in the council’s usable 

and unusable reserves during the year. 

OPERATING LEASE 

This is a lease where the ownership and risk and reward of 

holding an asset remains with the lessor. 

PRECEPT 

The levy made by one authority to another to finance its 

expenditure. 

PROVISION 

This is a sum of money that has been put aside in the accounts 

for liabilities or losses that are due but where the amount due or 

the timing of the payment is not known with any certainty.  

PRUDENCE 

An accounting concept used in preparing the accounts that 

ensures that income is only included in the accounts if it is 

considered likely that it will be received. 

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 

A set of indicators that inform the council as to whether their 

capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. 
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Glossary (continued) 

 

RATEABLE VALUE 

The annual assumed rental value of a property that is used for 

business purposes. 

RELATED PARTIES 

Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during 

the financial period:- 

• one party has direct or indirect control of the other party 

• the parties are subject to common control from the same 

source 

• one party has influence over the financial and operational 

policies of the other party to an extent that the other party 

might be inhibited from pursuing its own interests 

• the parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence 

from the same source to such an extent that one of the parties 

to the transaction has subordinated its own interests. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

A related party transaction is the transfer of assets, liabilities or 

services between the council and its related party irrespective of 

whether a charge is made.   

The materiality of related party transactions is judged both in 

terms of their significance to the council and its related party. 

 

RESERVES 

A reserve is an amount set aside in the accounts to be spent in 

future years. Reserves of a revenue nature are available and can 

be spent or earmarked for a specific purpose at the council’s 

discretion. 

REVENUE EXPENDITURE 

The day to day expenses associated with the provision of 

services. 

REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER 

STATUTE (REFCUS) 

Capital expenditure which does not create or add to the value of 

an item of property, plant or equipment belonging to the council. 

REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT 

A general grant paid by the Government to local authorities as a 

contribution towards the cost of their services. 

TRUST FUNDS 

Funds administered by the authority for such purposes as prizes, 

charities, and specific projects. 

UNUSABLE RESERVES 

Reserves that cannot be applied by the council to fund 

expenditure or reduce council tax 

USABLE RESERVES 

Reserves that can be applied by the council to fund expenditure 

or reduce council tax. 
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Glossary (continued) 

 

WORK IN PROGRESS 

The value of works that has been completed or is partially 

complete at the end of the accounting period that should be 

included in the financial statements.   
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 

 
The Council's Responsibilities 
 
The council is required to: 

• make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the 
administration of those affairs. In this council, that officer is the Deputy Chief Executive. 

• manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets. 

• approve the Statement of Accounts. 
 
The S151 Officer’s Responsibilities 

The S151 Officer (the Deputy Chief Executive) is responsible for the preparation of the council's Statement of Accounts in accordance with 
proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (‘the Code’). 

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the S151 Officer has: 

• selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently; 

• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and 

• complied with the Code. 
 
The S151 Officer has also: 

• kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and 

• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
I certify that the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of the council at the reporting date and of its 

expenditure and income for the year ended 31 March 2023. 
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts (continued) 

 

 

 

JAYNE PICKERING   

Deputy Chief Executive  

S151 Officer  

 

Approval of the Statement of Accounts 

I confirm that this Statement of Accounts, including the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on page 49 and the Balance 

Sheet on page 51, was approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on XX September 2023.  

Signed on behalf of Wychavon District Council. 

 

 

 

COUNCILLOR ADRIAN HARDMAN 

Chairman of the Audit Committee 

XX November 2023 
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